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EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE 

A Touchstone Energy Cuupcrativc &.?? - 



East Kentucky Power Cooperative 

East Ikntucky Power Cooperative (EIKPC) is a not-for- 
profit generation and transmission (G&T) electric utility 
with headquarters in Winchester, IKy EIKPC provides 
wholesale energy, transmission and support services 
to 10 distribution cooperatives Together, EIKPC and 
the member cooperatives are ltnown as IKentucky's 
Touchstone Energy Cooperatives 

The member distribution systems supply energy to 
meters serving 51 1,000 IKentucky homes. farms, 
businesses and industries across 87 counties 
The member systems are locally owned, operated 
and governed by the people who use their energy 
and services 

Operating 
Revenue 
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The 16 distribution cooperatives, which are called 
the member systems, own EKPC.The 16 co-ops include: 

Big Sandy RECC 2 licking Valley RECC 
Blue Grass Energy Cooperative 
Clork Energy Cooperative 

Nolin RECC 
Owen Electric Cooperotive 

3 Cumberlond Valley Electric 3 Salt River Electric Cooperative 
'3 Farmers RECC Shelby Energy Cooperotive 
> Fleming-Mason Energy Cooperative South Kentucky Rural Electric 

Grayson RECC Taylor County RECC 
Inter-County Energy 

3 Jackson Energy Cooperative 

EAST KENTUCKY POWER GENERATION 
1 Spurlock 1.1 18 net MW 

2 Dale 196 net MW 

3 Smith 
Combustion 
Turbine 
Units 

4 Cooper 

Landfill Gas Plants 
5 Bavarian 

6 Laurel Ridge 

7 Green Valley 

8 Pearl Hollow 

9 Pendletan 

Summer 
626 net MW 
Winter 
842 net MW 

341 net MW 

3 2 net MW 

4.0 net MW 

2.4 net MW 

2 4 net MW 

3 2 net MW shows system-wide service area 

Southeastern 
Power Adm. (SEPA), 
hydro power 170MW 
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EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE 
ighlights (Dollars inThousands) 

Operating Revenue 

Operating Expenses 

Net Margin 

Fuel Expenses for Generation 

Purchased Power Cost 

Interest Cost 

Members' Equities 

Construction Expenditures 

Assets 

Sales to Member Cooperatives (MWh) 

System Peak Demand (MW) 

2007 

$743,026 

$638,533 

$41,920 

$293,756 

$120,381 

$102,966 

$1 61,139 

$421,809 

$2,358,003 

12,851,620 

2006 

$650,960 

$573.750 

$11,174 

$278,210 

$76,781 

$84,834 

$ 107,033 

$290,463 

$2,030,092 

12.1 29,402 

Winter Season 3,033 * 2,859 

Summer Season 2,487 2,339 

Number of Member System Consumers 511,371 504,492 

* set January 25,2008 

% 
Increase 

14.1 

11 3 

275.2 

5.6 

56 8 

21 4 

50 6 

45 2 

162 

6 0  

6 1  

6 3  

1 4  

Energy Sales 
to Members 

MWh in Millions 

.-I I I I I I I 

Members' Equities 
Year-End in $Millions 

,m - 

o-I I I I I I I 

Interest Cast 
in $Millions 

120- 

o-I I I I I I I 
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Net Margins IDeficitl. $1,000 2 TIER 
iG DSC 
E Fuel Expense - 51,000 
E - Construction Expenditures -$l,000 
J Generation 

Transmission 
m General 

"- V 

(n 
_. 

Investment In Facilities. $1,000 
Original Cost 

Long-Term Debt - 51,000 

4-J 
VI 
i-' 

I-' 

,_ 

m Total Assets - 51.000 
ln Number of Employees- Full-Time 
L Cost of Coal Purchased 
m Won 

S/MBtu 
Amount of Coal Purchased. tons 

T 
^ .  
> Generation - MWh 

U System Peak Demand. MW 
Winter Season 
Summer Season 

Sales to Other Utilities - MWh 
Member Load Growth - 46 

.- 

Energy 
Demand 

Load Factor - 9b 
Miles of l ine 
Installed Capacity. kVA 
Distribution Substations 

2007 

541,920 
1.41 
115 

$293,756 

5387,816 
$33,802 

$191 

$2,925,546 
$1,955,039 
52,358,003 

620 

$51.06 
52 17 

4.788.727 
11,493,588 

3,033 
2,487 

154,743 

60  
5 3  
51 

2.704 
9,066,866 

333 

Average Interest Rate on 
Long-Term Debt Year-End 

Average 96 

@__I  I I I I I I 

2006 

511.174 
113 
0 98 

$278,210 

5222.722 
$62,638 

55.103 

$2,482,319 
$1,643,305 
$2,030,092 

620 

$55 82 
$2 35 

4,788,437 
11,197,632 

2.859 
2,339 

77,010 

I1 91 
1 3  
50 

2,673 
9,010,066 

321 

2005 

1546.007) 
0 34 
0 66 

5263.434 

$1 31,756 
526,987 
53.864 

$2,1'32,259 
$1,339,263 
51,687,894 

635 

$4995 
52 09 

4,559,035 
11,105,626 

2,642 
2,227 

144,197 

4 7  
6 2  
52 

2.663 
8,919.666 

311 

2004 

1527,2671 
49 

0 72 
5173,506 

5166.351 
$35,818 
52.846 

$2,0253 14 
$1,223,164 
$1,558,561 

629 

543 24 
$1 78 

3,859339 
9,046,449 

2,711 
2,041 

53,466 

3 2  
4 0  

8,863.666 
304 

Power Cost to Members 
T EnvIioliliicnlrl~urd~nijc MillslkWh 

o-l I I I I I I 

51 
2.638 

2003 

$29,398 
166 
135 

$1 37,103 

$221,949 
527,101 
512,762 

51,810,211 
5952,987 

51328,532 
599 

$3413 
$1 39 

3,615,196 
9,061,760 

2.589 
1,996 

71,224 

0 7  
IO 61 

51 
2,629 

8,824,466 
299 

N N N N N N  
0 0 0 0 0 0  
0 0 0 0 0 0  
N W P U m V  
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MAKING PROGRESS, FACING CHALLENGES AHEAD 

Though 2007 emerged as a challenging year, EKPC achieved 
key goals set a t  the beginning of the year to streamline the 
organization and strengthen its financial condition 

To streamline the organization, EKPC reduced the number of 
senior staff from 10 to five. An independent consulting firm 
developed 136 recommendations to reorganize and improve 
work throughout the organization,and EKPC implemented 
most of those recommendations 

Other accomplishments included ending costly and time- 
consuming litigation by settling two lawsuits filed by the U S 
Environmental Protection Agency. We also successfully 
negotiated Warren Rural Electric's withdrawal from our 
organization. 

In order to strengthen finances,EKPC renewed an aggressive 
cost containment initiative,which included appointing five 
teams to make recommendations to significantly reduce costs 
These efforts will be ongoing in an attempt to increase 
competitiveness and save millions of dollars in costs by 201 1 

Net margin in 2007 was $41.9 million,which rose significantly 
from the $1 1,2 million net margin recorded the previous year. 

The savings derived from our cost-containment campaign 
became essential when the Kentucky Public Service Commission 
announced late last year that EKPC could make permanent the 
$1 9 million annual rate increase that the cooperative began 
collecting in April 2007 on an interim basis. 

As we look ahead to 2008 and beyond, it will again be critical 
to demonstrate the ability to meet financial obligations and 
raise our equity positions in order to obtain the financing 
necessary to meet future construction needs. 

Those needs include plans to spend more than $2 billion to 
complete new baseload generating plants (including Spurlock 
Unit 114 and Smith Unit H1) and modify existing facilities to meet 
increasingly strict emissions standards Timely completion of 
these projects is essential for our customers, and they present 
a huge challenge for our organization 

We must continue to focus our efforts on being as efficient and 
effective as possible while keeping our existing fleet operating 
a t  maximum capacity. 

EKPC will continue to look for ways to expand coal blending and 
use alternate fuels to contain costs.We will also continue to 
explore options on joint power supply with other utilities. 

Our organization will continue to build upon the improvements 
made in 2007, united behind determined efforts to achieve our 
long-term goals and meet the challenges ahead. 

Bob Marshall 
President and CEO 

Wayne Stratton 
Chairman of the Board 
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YEAR IN REVIEW 

Public Service Commission 

grants rate increase 
In December 2007, the Kentucky Public Service Commission 
(PSC) said EKPC could make permanent a rate increase that 
the PSC approved in April on an interim basis. 

The rate increase amomted to approximately 2 percent for 
retail members,or about $1 50 to $2 per month for the average 
residential retail member served by one of EKPC's 16 member 
cooperatives The wholesale rate increase will generate about 
$19 million in additional annual revenue 

Cooper Station adopts plan 

t o  mit igate low water 
In December 2007, the PSC approved modifications at EKPC's 
Cooper Station to ensure continued operation of the plant at 
lower Lake Cumberland IevekThe $24 million plan - to be 
offset somewhat by a $3 million government grant awarded in 

December 2007 - included the construction of a cooling 
tower and the deployment of supplemental water pumps 

Settlements wi th  federal 

government announced 
In September 2007, EKPC announced an  $1 1 4 million settlement 
with the federal government to be paid over six years, resolving 
alleged violations of the Clean Air Act The lawsuit alleged that 
EKPC's Dale It1 and Dale N2 generating units in Clark County 
should have been included in the government's regulatory 
programs for emissions of sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxide 
Under the existing settlement, additional penalties may be 
assessed in the future.depending upon EKPC margins 

In addition, EKPC maintained it had been and remains in 
compliance with the Clean Air Act The agreement resulted 
from more than a year of negotiations between the U 5 
Department of Justice, the U S Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) and EKPC 
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In July 2007,a settlement was reached with the fedeml government 
to resolve a lawsuit that alleged New Source Review violations 
of the Clean Air Act.The settlement called for EKPC to pay a 
$750,000 civil penalty 

As part of the settlement, EKPC pledged to construct projects 
to further reduce emissions from its power plants at an estimated 
cost of $656 million over the next five to seven years. 

Spurlock Unit #4 air permi t  affirmed, 

construction continues 
The Kentucky Environmental and Public Protection Cabinet in 
September of last year affirmed approval of the air permit for 
Spurlock Unit #4, EKPC's second clean coal unit, which crews 
began constructing in mid-lune 2006. 

A t  peak construction in the summer and fall of 2007, nearly 
1.000 construction workers were building the unit a t  Spurlock 
Station 

The project, scheduled for completion by April 2009, will be 
identical to Spurlock Station's Gilbert Unit,which came on-line in 
2005.11sing a cutting-edge technology known as the circulating 
fluidized bed (CF8) process, Unit #4 will produce 98 percent 
less sulfur dioxide and 80 percent less nitrogen oxide than 
conventional coal plants.The 278-megawatt unit will rank 
among the cleanest coal generating units in the nation. 

Scrubber construction underway 
Construction of two scrubbers that remove sulfur dioxide 
emissions continued a t  Spurlock Station, with the Unit #2 
scrubber scheduled to go into service in fall 2008.The Unit 
# l  scrubber is expected to be completed in spring 2009. 

Stack construction at Spurlock Station 
In May 2007, work began on the first of two new 650-foot stacks 
at Spurlock Station designed to handle additional moisture from 
the scrubbers that are being added to Units #1 and #2 

Work began in May 2007 on the new Unit #2 stack and should 
be completed by July ZOOB.Con5truction on the new Spurlock 
# 1  stack is scheduled to last until January 2009 Once the new 
stacks are completed, the emissions from the generating units 
will be re-routed to the new structures from the existing stacks 

Dale Uni t  #3 undergoes first 

overhaul in more than a decade 
A major turbine/generator overhaul to Dale Station's Unit #3 
got underway in October 2007 and was finished ahead of 
schedule. 

During the eight-week outage, plant technicians rebuilt turbine 
and control valves and replaced regeneration tubes in the 
boiler.Unit W3's last major overhaul took place 1 I years ago. 
During the procedure, technicians also installed low nitrogen 
oxide burners on Dale units # l  and #2 

Public Service Commission 

approves Smith Uni t  #1 
The PSC in August granted EKPC a certificate of need for 
construction of the 278-megawatt coal-fired unit a t  J.K.Smith 
Station in Clark County.Smith Unit #l needs the air permit 
and federal environmental approval from the Rural Utilities 
Service in order for EKPC to begin construction. 

EKPC is in the midst of one of the busiest periods in its history, 
with approximately $2 billion in ongoing or planned construction 
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EKPC signs combustion turbine contract 
In 2007, EKPC signed a contract with General Electric to add 
combustion turbine units N8 and 69 at i I( Smith Station in 
Clark County 

EKPC is awaiting final regulatory approvals, but the target 
commercial date for the units is  summer 2009 

Forest management program proposed 
EKPC developed a forest management plan to mitigate noise 
and promote stewardship at  J K Smith Station Under the plan, 
thousands of trees native to Kentucky were planted to 
enhance the environment and reduce noise from the plant 

P lan  for 36-mil? po*,ver l ine appio;ircl 
The PSC in September 2007 approved EKPC's plans for a 
36-mile, 345-kilovolt electric transmission iine in Clark, 
Garrard and Madison counties About three-quarters of 
the proposed route will be co-located with existing 
transmission lines by either rebuilding existing lines 
or constructing a new line beside existing lines EKPC 
began construction on the line in 2008 and wiil l iave 
the line in service in 2009. 

Other line work got underway in March 2007 when EKPC 
began constructing a new distribution substation and 
approximately four miles of 69-kilovolt transmission line 
to serve Edmonton Industrial Park in Giasgow, Ky The 
project, constructed by EKPC in partnership with Farmers 
RECC and the Ci ty  of Edmonton, will provide enhanced 
electric service to the industrial park 
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Board approves Nor th Star budget  
In December 2007, EKPC's Board approved a budget with 
specific targets to increase rate competitiveness Management 
also adopted targeted goals for unit availability, safety, 
transmissiun reliability and cash flow 

EKPC, iVllSQ sign re-dispatch agreement 
The Midwest Independent System Transmission System 
Operator (MISO) and EKPC in May 2007 entered into an 
agreement that will help alleviate transmission constraints 
The agreement had an initial one-year term but will renew 
automatically unless terminated by one of the parties 

Under the agreement, the MI50 agrees to compensate EKPC 
when the cooperative agreed to re-dispatch units to 
accommodate some of the MISO's power flows. 

Uni t  generation figures 
In 2007, EKPC posted generation of 11.5 million net megawatt 
hours (MWh) Dale Station generated 1 0 million net MWh 
Cooper Station generated 2 0 million net MWh,while Spurlock 
Station produced more than 8 0 million net MWh and Smith 
Station generated 378,475 net MWh. EKPC's five landfill gas 
plants combined for a total generation of 93,452 net MWh 
in 2007 

System transmission construction continues 
During 2007, EKPC built 39 miles of new transmission lines 
Throughout the year, crews also completed 72 36 miles of 
line upgrades and re-conductoring. 

2007 Touchstone Energy All " A  Classic awards 

scholarships t o  Ilentncky students 
Students from Kentucky's smallest high schools again show- 
cased their talents in basketball,cheerleading, music,art, 
baseball, softball and ROTC drill teams during a variety of 
events throughout the year. 

In addition, 70 Kentucky high school seniors were each 
awarded a $1.000 scholarship, which they can apply toward 
any Kentucky post-secondary school. 

TheTouchstone Energy AII"A"C1assic i s  a popular annual 
tournament that gives thousands of students from 
Kentucky's smaller high schools the opportunity to 
showcase both athletic and academic talents. 
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EKPC's fifth landfi l l  gas power plant debuts 

EKPC began operating its fifth renewable power plant fueled 

by landfill gas in February 2007 The plant, located at the 

Pendleton County Landfill, produces 3.2 megawatts of 

electricity, enough clean, renewable power to supply about 

1,900 Kentucky homes 

EKPC's other landfill gas plants are located at Bavarian 
Landfill (near Walton, Ky.), Green Valley Landfill (near 
Grayson, Ky ), Laurel Ridge Landfill (near London, Ky.) and 
Pearl Hollow Landfill (near Elizabethtown, Ky.) Together, 
these plants generate about 15 megawatts of power, or 
enough to supply about 9,000 Kentucky homes., 

Blue Grass Energy $ w i n s  i + a i i i  a ~ v a r d  
a t  Lineii ian'j Rod?o 
Nicholasville, Ky-based Blue Grass Energy won in the overall 
team competition a t  the third annual Kentucky Lineman's 
Rodeo, held in July 2007 at EKPC headquarters Twenty-one 
teams representing 13 Kentucky cooperatives competed a t  

the event 



EXECUTIVE STAFF 
Coordinates strategic initiatives with day-today operations to further the goals of the company 

David Smart 
Legal 
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Cinancial Highlights 

Results of Operations 
Operating revenues for the twelve months ended December 
31,2007 increased approximately $92 1 million compared to 
the same period in 2006 As a result ofcold weather in early 
2007 and unusuallywarm weather in the summer and fall, MWh 
sales to members increased 6 0 percent over the previous year. 
Through December 31,2007,demand and energy revenue to 
members increased $79.,3 million over the same period in 
2006. In January 2007, EKPC filed an Application for General 
Adjustment in Electric Rates with the PSC. The PSC granted 
EKPC interim rate relief of $19 million as of April 1,2007. This 
interim rate relief was made permanent by the PSC in 
December 2007. The PSC allows electric utilities to recover 
fuel and purchased power costs through a fuel adjustment 
clause and to recover Federal Clean Air Act compliance costs 
through an environmental surcharge. For the twelve-month 
period ended December 31,2007, fuel adjustment clause 
revenue and environmental surcharge revenue increased 
$3,6 million and $3.4 million, respectively, over the same 
period last year., 

During 2007, EKPC settled two lawsuits with the EPA The first 
lawsuit alleged physical or operating changes to three coal- 
fired generators resulted in simultaneous violations of various 
aspects of the Clean Air Act. EKPC and the EPA executed a 
consent decree EKPC agreed to pay $750.000 in civil penalties, 
install certain emissions monitoring equipment, and report 
emissions The second lawsuit alleged technical violations of 
the Clean Air Act Acid Rain programand provisions of the NOx 
State Implementation Plan a t  Dale Units 1 and 2 The issue 
for both units involved whether these units were subject to 
regulations as generators having a "nameplate" capacity greater 
than 25 megawatts and/ or were generators used to generate 
25 megawatts or more of electricity EKPC and the EPA executed 
a second consent decree EKPC agreed to make six annual 
payments of $1 9 million in fixed penalties, the first of which 
was paid in December 2007 EKPC is subject to a contingent 
penalty payment i f  certain financial ratios are achieved in 
2008 through 201 2 EKPC also surrendered certain NOx and 
SO2 allowances 

Production Operating Expense,which includes fuel, other 
production and purchased power, are categories that should 
be considered together for comparative purposes. On an 
hour-to-hour basis, EKPC makes decisions whether to purchase 
energy on the open market or generate energy out of i ts own 
plants based on the most economic source Because of the 
weather conditions throughout 2007, EKPC ran i ts  combustion 
turbines for peaking purposes. Natural gas usage through 
December 31.2007 increased $180 million over the twelve 
months ended December 31,2006. Because of the weather 
and the growth in the EKPC system, EKPC must purchase 
power to meet member needs. Purchased power costs for the 
twelvemonth period ended December 31,2007 have increased 
$43.6 million over the same period in 2006. 
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ienerat ion of Power 
6KPC has coal fired generating facilities at  Dale Station in 
Clark County, Cooper Power Station in Pulaski County, and 
Spurlock Station in Mason County. Generation from these 
coal-fired units i s  supplemented during peak times by 
combustion turbines a t  the Smith Generating Facility in 
Clark County EKPC's generating facilities produced 11.5 million 
megawatt-hours in 2007, compared with 11 2 million in 2006. 

EKPC's power stations burned 4.82 million tons of coal in 
2007, compared with 4.,71 million tons in 2006. The cost of 
coal burned during 2007 was $2.181 per million Btu,or $50,94 
per ton, The cost of coal purchased during 2007 was $2.173 
per million Btt i  or $51.06 per ton. 

The combustion turbines a t  the Smith Generating Facility 
consumed 433,574 gallons of oil with a cost of $1.016 per 
gallon or $7.330 per million Btu. The combustion turbines 
also consumed 4,944,186 MCF of natural gas with a cost of 
$8.,37 per MCF 

Interest Costs 
Gross interest expense was $103 0 million.The prime rate 
decreased from 8 25 percent to 7 25 percent during 2007. 
During the year, Federal Financing Bank (FFB) interest rates 
for long-term advances increased from 4 17 to 5 30 percent 

Of the total $2,016.2 million debt outstanding,current interest 
rates range from a low of 2 percent to a high of 10.66 percent 
for 2007.The average annual rate on all debt increased from 
5 3 percent in 2006 to 5 4 percent in 2007. 

Virtually all of EKPC's outstanding FFB debt has been converted 
to long-term fixed rates. Because of favorable rates in the tax- 
exempt bond marketa total of $98 5 million of pollution control 
and solid waste disposal revenue floating/fixed rate bonds is 
being kept in thevariable rate mode. This rate averaged 3.68 
percent for 2007 

12 



-~ OPERATIONS, SERVICES & SUPPORT COMMITTEE 

Studies,advises and makes recommendations on matters relating to the overall management of the Cooperative, 
including the annual budgetwork plan,financial programs and other corporate functions 

BOARD MEMBERS 

U 

8 
x 
TI 

VI 
5 
m 
E 

Bill 
Rice 

Wade 
May 

Randy 
Sexton 

Lonnie 
Vice 

SYSTEM MANAGERS 

Dan 
Brewer 

Larry 
Hicks 

Bob 
Hood 

Kerry 
Howard 

Debbie 
Martin 

Jim 
Jacobus 
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___ FUEL & POWER SUPPLY COMMITTEE 

Makes recommendations on matters related to fuel and power supply, including fuel procurement,generation 
planning and other matters 

BOARD MEMBERS 

Mike 
Adarns 

E A  
Gilbert 

Hope 
Kinrnan 

Jimmy 
Longrnire 

Elbert 
Harnpton 

A. L 
Rosenberger 

SYSTEM MANAGERS 

Allen 
Anderson 

Paul 
Ernbs 

Barry 
Myers 

Don 
Schaefer 

Bobby 
Sexton 
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POWER DELIVERY COMMITTEE 

Responsible for transmission and power delivery, including transmission planning,system reliability, 
telecommunications and other functions 

BOARD MEMBERS 

Wayne 
Stratton 

Fred 
Brown 

Bill 
Shearer 

Danny 
Divine 

Tom 
Estes 

SYSTEM MANAGERS 

Mickey 
Miller 

Bill 
Prather 

Carol Ann 
Fraley 

Ted 
Ha m p t o n 

Chris 
Perry 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Responsible for assisting the board in performing its oversight responsibilities by recommending the external auditor to 
conduct theannual financial audit, reviewing the findings ofthe annual financial audirand performing other duties as 
outlined in the Audit Committee Charter. 

BOARD MEMBERS 

Lonnie 
Vice 

Bill 
Shearer 

SYSTEM MANAGERS 

Larry 
Hicks 

Don 
Schaefer 



REPORT OF MANAGEMENT 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of 
East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc. and Subsidiary were 
prepared by management, which is responsible for their 
integrity and objectivity. The statements were prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
and include amounts that are based on management's best 
judgments and estimates. The other financial information 
included in this Annual Report i s  consistent with the 
consolidated financial statements 

The Cooperative maintains a system of internal controls, 
including accounting controls. The system of controls provides 
for appropriate division of responsibility and the application 
of policies and procedures that are consistent with high 
standards of accounting and administration. The Cooperative 
believes that its system of internal controls provides reasonable 
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from 
unauthorized use or disposition and that financial records 
are reliable for use in preparing financial statements 

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by 
the Cooperative's independent certified public accountants, 
Crowe Chizek and Company LLC, whose opinion appears on 
the next page. 

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee consisting 
solely of outside directors and member system managers, meets 
with Crowe Chizek and Company LLC and representatives 
of management to review their activities and to discuss 
accounting, auditing and financial matters and the carrying 
out of responsibilities and duties of each group.Crowe Chizek 
and Company LLC has full and free access to meet with the 
Audit Committee to discuss their audit results and opinions, 
without management representatives present, to allow for 
complete independence 

Bob Marshall David G Eames 
President and CEO Chief Financial Officer 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDE,NT AUDITORS 

To tlie Audit Committee 
East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc 

and Subsidiary 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of East Kenhtcky Power 
Cooperative, Inc. and Subsidiary (the Cooperative) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the 
related consolidated statements of revenue and expenses, changes in members' equities, and cash 
flows for the years then ended These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Cooperative's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to fiiiancial atidits contained in GuueIririrerit 
Aiiditiiig Stnr7dmis, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in  tlie financial statements An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc and Subsidiary 
as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the 
years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America 

In accordance with Goverititrerrt AtrdiLiirg Stntidnids, we have also issued our report dated March 19, 
2008 on our consideration of East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal 
control over financial reporting and on oitr tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters, The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of the testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over fuiancial 
reporting or compliance That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
G ~ J ~ ~ ~ I I I I I ~ I I ~  Aitditiiig Stnirdnrds and should be read in conjunction with this report hi considering 
the results of our audit. 

In 2007, the Cooperative adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 158, 
Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit and Other Postretirement Plans, as discussed in Note 
6 

Lexington, Kenhicky 
March 19,2008 

Crowe Cluzek and Company L,LC 
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EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
December 31,2007 and  2006 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

ASSETS 
Electric plant, at original cost 

In-service 
Construction in progress 

L.ess accumulated depreciation 
Electric plant, net 

L.ong-term accounts receivable 

Investment securities 
Available for sale 
I-feld to mahirity 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Fuel 
Materials and supplies 
Emission a l l o ~ a i i c e ~  
Other 

Total current assets 

Deferred charges 
Other 

Total assets 

L.IABILlTlES AND MEMBERS’ EQUITIES 
bknibers’ equities 

L.ong-term debt, excluding current portion 

Cuirent liabilities 
Current portioii of long-term debt 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

Total cuireiit liabilities 

Accrued postretirement benefit cost 
Other 

Total liabilities and members’ equities 

__ 2007 

$ 2,157,134 
768,412 

2,925,546 
835,416 

2,090,130 

5,681 

46,551 
8.195 

16,660 
68,309 
43,868 
39,205 
27,286 
2,782 

198,110 

3,392 
5,944 

I - 2.358.003 

$ 161,139 

1,955,0,39 

61,137 
106,153 
11,139 

178,429 

38,917 
24,479 

$ 2.358.003 

- 2006 

$ 2,079,932 
402,387 

2,482,319 
798,533 

1,683,786 

7,428 

43,956 
8,216 

69,202 
62,091 
44,682 
37,129 
58,920 
3,130 

275.154 

4.499 
7,053 

$ 2.030.092 

S 107,033 

1,643,305 

57,782 
90,977 
2‘4,942 

173,701 

48,66,3 
57,390 

$ 2.030.09Z_ 

The accompanying notes a re  a n  integral par t  of these 
consolidated financial statements. 
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EAST IGNTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES 
Years Ended December 31,2007 and 2006 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

Operating revenue 

Operating expenses 
Production 

Fuel 
Other 

Purchased power 
Transmission and distribution 
Depreciation 
General and administrative 

Operating margins 

Interest expense 

Net operating maigin (deficit) 

Nonoperating inaigiiis 
Inte~est income 
Allowance for inteiest on borrowed funds used 

Lawsuit settlements 
Miscellaneous 

during construction 

Capital credits and patronage capital allocations 

Net margin 

2007 

$ 743,026 

293,756 
116,882 
120,381 
27,495 
40,563 
39,456 

638,533 

104,493 

102,986 

1,507 

7,860 

22,275 
9,443 

700 
40,278 

135 

$ 41.920 

2006 

$ 650,960 

278,210 
113,382 
76,781 
27,557 
39,384 
38,436 

573,750 

77,210 

84,834 

(7,624) 

8,433 

9,192 

858 
18,483 

315 

$ 11.174 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these 
consolidated financial statements 
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EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' EQUITIES 
Years Ended December 31,2007 and  2006 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

Patronage 
Ivlemberships 

Balances, January 1,2006 tF 2 ifi 92,386 

Comprelieiisive income 
Net margin 11,174 
Unrealized losses on investments 

available for sale 
Total comprehensive income ___ 

Balances, December 31,2006 - 7 103,560 

Comprehensive income 
Net margin 4'1,920 
Unrealized gains on investments 

Total comprehensive income 
available for sale 

Adoption of SFAS No 158 

Balances, December 31, 2007 L 2 $ 145.4R0 

~ 

Accumulated 

Donated Comprelieiisive Ivlembers' 
Otlier Total 

Capital income 

$ 3,035 E 685 ifi 96,108 

11,174 

(249) (249) 
10,925 

3,035 436 107,03,3 

41,920 

50 50 
41,970 

12.136 12,136 

$ 3.035 y; 17.622 $ 161.139 

The accompanying notes are  an integral par t  of these 
consolidated fuiancial statements. 
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EAST I<ENTUCI<Y POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOL,IDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Years Ended December 31,2007 and 2006 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Net margin 
Adjustments to reconcile net margin 

to net cash from operating activities 
Depreciation 
Amortization of loan costs 
Changes in: 

Accounts receivable 
Fuel 
Materials and supplies 
Enussion allowances 
Accounts payable, trade 
Accrued expenses 
Accrued postretirement benefit cost 
Other 

Net cash from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Additions to electric plant 
Maturities and calls of securities available for sale 
Purchases of securities available for sale 
Maturities of securities held to maturity 
Payments received on long-term accounts receivable 

Net cash from investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from long-term debt 
Principal payments on long-term debt 

Net cash from financing activities 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of yea1 

2007 

$ 41,920 

40,563 
2,859 

(6,218) 
(21,343) 
(2,898) 
41,650 
82,767 

(1 3,803) 
2,390 

(46,902) 
120,985 

(487,839) 
10 

(2,555) 
21 

1,747 
(488,616) 

582,126 
(267,037) 
315,089 

(52,542) 

69,202 

$ 16.660 

2006 

$ 11,174 

39,384 
2,843 

15,572 
(19,237) 
(4,034) 

(54,833) 
43,810 
4,108 
2,059 

(1S,609) 
22,237 

(304,474) 
19,611 

(21,235) 
21 

440 
(305,637) 

360,000 
(51,261) 
308,739 

25,339 

43,863 

$ 69,202 

The accompanying notes are an integral pait of these 
consolidated financial statements 
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EAST KE,NTUCI<Y POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Years Ended December 31,2007 and 2006 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information 
Cash paid for interest $ 

Non-cash opeiating transaction 
Fuel included in accounts payable I 
Materials and supplies included in accounts payable 

Transfer from accrued postretirement benefit cost to 
members' equities as a result of initial application 
ofSFASNo 158 I 

I Transfer of emissions allowances from othei liabilities 

Non-cash investing transaction 
Additions to electric plant incliided in accounts payable I 
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities available fot sale 

2007 

117,955 

22,157 
822 

12,136 

10,016 

44,612 
50 

2006 

82,183 

13,791 
483 

- 

14,414 
(249) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these 
consolidated financial statements. 
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EAST KENTUCKY POWE,R COOPE,RATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2007 and 2006 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POCICIE,S 

Nature of Ouerations: The Cooperative is engaged in generating and transnutting electrical 
power primarily to its sixteen member cooperatives throughout central and eastern ICenhicky 
Tlie financial statements are prepared in accordance with policies prescribed or permitted by the 
I<enhicky Public Service Commission (PSC) and the United States Department of Agriculture, 
Rural Utilities Service (RUS), which conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America as applied to regulated enterprises. 

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of East 
Kenhicky Power Cooperative, Iiic. and its subsidiary, Charleston Bottoms Rural Electric 
Cooperative Corporation (CBRECC), All significant intercoinpiny accounts aiid transactions have 
been eliminated. 

Estimates in the Financial Statements: The preparation of finaiicial statements in conformity with 
accountiiig principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to 
make estimates aiid assumptions that affect the reported amoiints of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the fuiancial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Achral results could 
differ from those estimates 

Electric Plant: Electric plant is stated at origuial cost, which is the cost when first dedicated to 
public service, including applicable labor and overhead cost and an allowance for interest on 
borrowed funds Lrsed during construction 

The cost of niaintenance and repairs, including renewals of minor itenis of property, is charged to 
operating expense. The cost of replacement of depreciable property units, as  distinguished from 
minor items, is charged to utility plant., The cost of units replaced or retired, including cost of 
removal, net of any salvage value, is charged to accumulated depreciation. 

Provision for depreciation has been made on the basis of estimated useful lives at straight-line 
coinposite rates or end dates geiierally as follows: 

Production plant years 2019 - 2045 
0.71% - 3.42% 
2 00'% - 20 00'% 

Transmission and distribution plant 
General plant 

Long-Term Assets: E.lectric plant and other long-term assets are reviewed for impairment when 
events indicate their carrying amoirnt limy not be recoverable from f ~ r  Lure Lindiscounted cash 
flows. If impaired, the assets are recorded at fair value. No impairment has been recognized on 
long-term assets for the years ended December 31,2007 or 2006 

(Continued) 
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EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2007 and 2006 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Con thed)  

Allowance for Interest on Borrowed Funds Used During Construction: In accordance with 
practices permitted by the prescribed system of accounts, the Cooperative provides an allowance 
for interest on borrowed funds used during construction. The allowaiice represents the calculated 
net interest cost of funds borrowed for construction of major projects which take longer than one 
year and cost in excess of $100,000 

Investnieiit Securities: Investment securities are classified as held to maturity and carried at 
amortized cost when management has the positive intent and ability to hold them to maturity. 
Investnient securities are classified as available for sale when they might be sold before maturity 
Investment securities available for sale are carried at fair value, with unrealized holding gains and 
losses reported in other comprehensive income Trading securities are carried at fair value, with 
changes in unrealized holding gains and losses included in income 

Interest incoine includes amortization of purchase premium or discount Gains and losses on 
sales are based on the amortized cost of the security sold. Investment securities are written down 
to fair value when a decline in fair value is not temporary. 

Revenue and Fuel Costs: Revenue is recorded monthly based on meter readings made at month- 
end 

The PSC has adopted a iiniform fuel adjustment clause for all electric utilities within its 
jurisdiction. Under this clause, fuel cost above or below a stated amount per kWh is charged or 
credited to the nieinber cooperatives for all energy sales, 

The PSC has an environnieiital cost recovery mechanism that allows utilities to recover certain 
costs incurred in complying with the Federal Clean Air Act This enviroiunental surcharge is 
being billed on a percentage of revenue basis 

The PSC granted an interim increase in base rates of $19 inillion on an annualized basis for service 
rendered on and after April 1, 2007, The PSC made this interim increase permanent in December 
2007 

The Cooperative's sales are primarily to its member coopeiatives and amounted to approximately 
$732,348,000 and $645,476,000 for 2007 and 2006, respectively Accounts receivable at December 
31,2007 and 2006 were priinarily from billings to member cooperatives 

(Continued) 
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EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2007 and 2006 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, individual account balances that exceeded 10 percent of total 
accounts receivable are as follows: 

2007 2006 

Owen Electric Coopeiative 
South I<entucky RECC 
Blue Grass Energy Cooperative 

$ 9,354,000 $ 8,748,000 
6,408,000 
6,304,000 

Cash and Cadi Equivalents: For purposes of the consolidated fiiancial statements, the 
Cooperative considers temporary investnients having a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents., 

At Deceniber 31,2007 and 2006, respectively, the Cooperative had $5S9,690 and $1,205,394 of cash 
on deposit at one bank, which is in excess of federally insured limits 

Fuel and Materials and Supplies: Inventories of fuels and materials and supplies are stated at 
average cost 

Emission Allowances: Title IV of the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 provides for tlie 
issuance of allowances as  a means to limit tlie emissions of certain airborne pollutants 
Allowances are stated at cost. Issuances of allowances are recognized using a monthly weiglited- 
average inetliod of cost determination. Gains and losses are recorded upon the disposition of 
allowances 

Members' Equities: Memberships represent contributions to the Cooperative made by members. 
Should the Cooperative cease business, tliese amounts, if available, will be returned to the 
members. In addition, any available capital credits will also be allocated to inembeis on a 
contribution-to-gross margins basis. 

A provision in the Cooperative's bylaws prohibits the rehim of capital contributed by patrons 
unless, after any proposed retirement, the total capital of tlie Cooperative equals or exceeds 40 
percent of total assets, In addition, provisions of certain loan agreements prohibit the retirement 
of capital until stipulated requirements as  to liquid assets (cash and U S  Government obligations) 
are met Accordingly, at December 31, 2007, no patronage capital was available for refunds or 
retirement 

(Continued) 
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EAST IGNTUCI<Y POWER COOPERATIVE,, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2007 and 2006 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contiiued) 

Comprehensive Income: Comprehensive income includes both net margin (deficit) and other 
comprehensive income Other comprehensive income represents the change in unrealized gains 
and losses on secuiities available for sale 

Income Taxes: The Cooperative is exempt under section 501(c)(12) of the hteinal Revenue Code 
from federal income tax for any year in wluch at least 85 percent of its gloss income is derived 
from members but is responsible for income taxes on certain unrelated business income 

Reclassifications: Certain 2006 amounts have been reclassified it1 these consolidated fuiancial 
statements to conform to the 2007 presentation Such reclassifications had no effect on net margin 
or members' equities as previously presented 

NOTE 2 - ELECTRIC PLANT 

Flectiic plant in-service consisted of the following at Decembei 31: 

Production plant 
Transmission plant 
Geiieial plant 
Completcd constiuction, not < js, 

Electiic plant in service 

!d a111 

2007 pJ6 
(in thonsands) 

$ 1,566,397 $ 1,558,660 
479,090 432,580 
69,223 68,517 

'I 42,424 20,175 

$ 2.157.134 L2.079.932 

Depreciation expense was $40,563,000 and $39,384,000 for 2007 and 2006, respectively 

(Continued) 
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EAST KE,NTUCICY POWER COOPERATIVE,, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE,MENTS 
December 31,2007 and 2006 

NOTE 3 -LONG-TERM ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Long-term ~eceivables include modifications to Spurlock Power Station in order to provide 
steam to a paper mill that recycles container board. The paper inill is reimbursing tlie 
Cooperative for the cost of tlie modifications througli a monthly facilities charge over the 20- 
year life of tlie contract, Long-term receivables also include interest-bearing notes from joint 
ventures owned by the Cooperative and four of the Cooperative’s inember systems for the 
buyout of a propane company. The joint ventures of the member systems are making principal 
and interest (prime rate minus one-half of one percent, adjust annually) payments The notes 
are payable in full in 2015. 

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES 

Amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities available for sale at December 31 
are as follows (in thousands): 

Gross Gross 

- Cost Losses 
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 

2007 

National Rural Utilities Cooperative 
Finance Corporation Proinissoi y 
Note 

US. Treasury bill 
Zero Coupon Bond 
Other 

2006 

National Rural Utilities Cooperative 
Finaiice Corporation Proinissory 
Note 

U S  Treasury bill 
Zero Coupon Bond 
Other 

$ 24 $ - $  $ 24 
41,660 84 41,744 
3,320 386 3,706 
1,061 16 - 1,077 

$ 46.551 $ 46.065 $ 486 $ 

$ 24 $ - $  - $  24 
39,698 28 39,726 
2,737 397 3,134 
1,061 11 1,072 

$ 43.520 $ 436 $ - $ 43.956 

(Con timed) 
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EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2007 and 2006 

NOTE 4 -INVESTMENT SE,CURITIES (Continued) 

Proceeds from maturities and calls of securities were $10,000 and $19,611,000 in 2007 and 2006, 
respectively Tliere were no realized gains or losses on those calls. 

Amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities held to maturity at December 31 
are as follows (in thousands): 

- 2007 

National Rural Utilities Cooperative 

3.5% capital term certificates 
6.5875'3, stibordinated term 

0'3, subordinated term certificate 

Finance Corporation 

cei tificate 

- 2006 

National Riiral Utilities Coopeiative 

3.5% capital term certificates 
6 5875% subordinated term 

0% subordinated teiin certificate 

Finance Corpoiation 

cei tilicate 

Amortized 
Cost 

$i 7,655 

44.10 
100 

$ 8.195 

$ 7,655 

455 
106 

$i 8.216 

Gross 
Unrealized a 

I 

103 

$ 103 

$ 

87 

$ 87 

Gross 
Unrealized Fair 
Losses Value 

$ (103) $i 7,552 

- 543 
A) 79 

tfi (124) li; 8.174 

$ (459) I 7,196 

542 
(26) 80 

tfi (485) $ 7.818 

(Continued) 
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EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2007 and 2006 

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES (Continued) 

Investment securities held to mahirity with unrealized losses at December 31 not recognized in 
net margin are as follows (in thousands): 

2007 
3-5% capital term certificates 
0% subordinated term certificate 

2006 
3-5% capital term certificates 
0% subordinated term certificate 

Unrealized Loss Unrealized Loss 

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized 
Less tlian 12 months 12 Months or More 

Value & & 

- $ 7,552 $ (103) $ - $  
79 (21) 

R - $ - $ 7.631 $ (124) 

The maturity dates on the above securities range from 2019 to 2080 and have no available trading 
market. However, it is management’s intent to hold these securities until mahirity, a t  which time 
nianageinent expects to recover full value. 

The amortized cost and fair value of securities at Deceinber 31, 2007, by contractual mahirity, are 
shown below Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because certain 
borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment 
penalties. 

Amor tized Fair 
Cost 

(in thousands) 
Available for sale 

Due in one year or less $ 42,034 $i 42,118 
Due after one year through five years 2,970 3,356 
Due after ten years 1,061 1,077 

Held to mahirity 
Due after ten years 

tfi 46.065 tfi 46.551 

% 8.195 tfi 8.174 

(Continued) 
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EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2007 and 2006 

NOTE 5 -LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted of the following 
(in thousands): 

First mortgage notes: 
4 199% - 10.657%, payable quarterly to Federal 
Financing Bank (FFB) in varying amounts through 2040 

270, 570, and 5 125% payable quarterly to RUS in 
varying amounts through 2024 

3.,8%, payable quarterly to CFC in varying amounts 
through 2024 

Fixed rate loan, 7.7%1, payable semiaiuiually in varying 
amounts to National Cooperative Services 
Corporation through 2012 

Promissory notes: 
5 70% - 6 33% variable rate note payable to CFC in 
2010 

Pollution control bonds: 
Series 1984B, variable rate bonds, due October 15, 
2014, 3.49% at December 31, 2007 and 4.03% at 
December 31,2006 

Series 1984J, variable rate bonds, due October 15,2011, 
3.50'36 at Decembei 31, 2007 and 3.55% at December 
31,2006 

Solid waste disposal ieveiiue bonds, Series 1993B, 
variable rate bonds, due August 15, 2023, inteiest rate 
3 75% at December 31, 2007 and 3 68X at December 
31,2006 

L.ess current portion of long-term debt 

2007 

$ 1,457,086 

44,311 

19,059 

7,200 

390,000 

74,950 

15,070 

8,500 
2,016,176 

61,137 

$ 1,955.039 

2006 

$? 1,108,580 

49,507 

20,440 

8,400 

405,000 

82,100 

18,260 

8,800 
1,701,087 

57,782 

$ 1.643.305 

- 

(Continued) 
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EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOL.IDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2007 and 2006 

NOTE 5 - LONG-TE,RM DEBT (Continued) 

In September 2002, RUS approved a loan application in the amount of $223,500,000 for the design, 
purchase, and installation of NOx reduction equipment and electrostatic precipitators, including 
plant modifications and related expenditures on Spurlock Power Station Units No. 1 and 2, 
Advances on these loans are subject to certain conditions outlined by RUS, and the non- 
governmental portions of such loans are subject to authorization from the 'PSC At December 31, 
2007, $15,200,000 of these amounts remained to be advanced 

hi September 2003, RUS approved a loan application in the amount of $433,863,000 for the 
construction of tlie Gilbert Unit at the Spurlock Power Station, including engineering services, 
preliminary structural design, and related transmission facilities. Advances on these loans are 
subject to certain conditions outlined by RUS and the noli-goveriiniental portions of such loans are 
subject to authorization from tlie PSC. At Deceniber 31, 2007, $3,612,000 of these amounts 
remained to be advanced 

In September 2003, RUS approved a loan application in the amount of $27,645,000 for the 
coiistruction of five landfill &is to energy generating units including engineering services, 
preliminary structural design, and related transmission facilities, Advances on these loans are 
subject to certain conditions outlined by RUS and the noli-governmental portions of such loans are 
subject to authorization from the PSC. As of December 31, 2007, $14,453,000 of these amounts 
remained to be advanced. 

hi May 2005, RUS approved a loan application in the amount of $55,240,000 for the construction of 
two additional combustion turbines at the J.I< Smith site, iiicluding engineering services, 
preliminary structural design, and related transniission facilities. Advances on these loans are 
subject to certain conditions outlined by RUS and the lion-governmental portions of such loans are 
subject to authorization from the PSC. As of December 31, 2007, $2,240,000 of these amounts 
remained to be advanced. 

In May 2005, E.WC submitted to RUS a loan application in the amount of $906,973,000 for the 
construction of the Smith #1 Unit and the construction of five additional conibustioii hirbhies at 
the J.I<.. Smith site, including engineering services, preliiniilary structural design, and related 
transmission facilities. hi June 2007, EKPC re-submitted this same loan application for the Smith 
#I Unit, along with the construction of only two combustion hirbines and related transmission 
facilities for a revised loan amount of $943,932,000. This loan has not been approved by RUS. 

In August 2005, RUS approved a loan application in the amount of $64,240,000 for the 
construction of various transmission projects. Advances on these loans are subject to certain 
conditions outlined by RUS and the iion-goven7meiitaI portions of such loans are subject to 
authorization from the KPSC As of December 31, 2007, $39,240,000 of these amounts remained to 
be advanced., 
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NOTE 5 - L.ONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

In September 2005, the Cooperative entered into an unsecured credit facility syndicate with the co- 
arrangers of CFC and tlie Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, This loan was approved for a total of 
$650,000,000 for general operating expenses and capital construction projects As of Deceniber 31, 
2007, $260,000,000 of this amount remained to be advanced 

In March 2006, RUS approved a loan application in the amount of $481,388,000 for the 
construction of the Unit #4 at tlie Sp~irlock Power Station, including engineering services, 
prelimhary structural design, and related transmission facilities. Advances on these loans are 
subject to certain conditions outlined by RUS and the noli-governmental portions of such loans are 
subject to authorization from the IU'SC. As of December 31,2007, $231,388,000 of these amounts 
remained to be advanced 

In May 2007, E.KFC submitted to RUS a loan application in the amount of $457,510,000 for the 
engineering and construction of a new scrubber on the Spurlock Unit #1 and the replacement of 
the existing scrubber on tlie Spurlock Unit #2. This loan has not been approved by RUS 

In accordance with the R ~ a l  E.lectrification Act of 1936 (RE Act), as  amended, tlie RUS established 
a cushion of credit prograin, Under this program, RUS borrowers niay make voluntary deposits 
into a special cushion of credit account. This cushion of credit account balance accrues interest at a 
rate of 5 percent per annum The amounts in the cushion of credit account (deposits and earned 
interest) can only be used to make scheduled payments on loans made or guaranteed under the 
RE Act. As of Deceinber 31, 2007 and 2006, the Cooperative's cushion of credit account balance 
was $0 and $75,875,000, respectively 

The interest rate on the Series 19848 Pollution Control Bonds is subject to change weekly and tlie 
interest rate on the Series 1984J Pollution Control Bonds and the Series 1993B Solid Waste Disposal 
Revenue Bonds are stibject to change semiaiuiually The interest rate adjustment period on any 
series of the above-mentioned variable rate bonds may be converted to a weekly, semiannual, 
aiuiual or three-year basis or to a fixed-rate basis, at tlie option of the Cooperative. 

Long-term pollution control and solid waste disposal revenue bonds require that debt service 
reserve funds be on deposit with a trustee throughout the term of tlie bonds. Debt service reserve 
requirements are as follows: Series 19848 - $12,717,000; Series 1984J - $5,368,500; and Series 
1993B - $1,062,000, In addition, inaiidatory sinking fund payments are required for each series as 
follows: Series 1984B - payments range from $7,950,000 in 2008 to $13,150,000 in 2013; Series 1984J 
- payments range from $3,535,000 in 2008 to $4,325,000 in 2010; and Series 1993B - payments 
range froin $400,000 in 2008 to $700,000 in 2023. Debt service reserve and construction funds are 
held by trustees and are invested primarily in U.S. Government securities and CFC promissory 
notes These funds are included in investment securities available for sale and have a fair value of 
approximately $21,599,000 at December 31,2007, 
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Estimated maturities of long-term debt for tlie five years subsequent to December 31,2007 are as 

$70,901,000; and thereafter - $1,280,107. 

Under tlie terms of the loan agreements with RUS, CFC and institutional investors, tlie 
Cooperative is required to maintain certain levels of members‘ equities, interest coverage, and 
debt service coverage, all of wliicli were met at December 31,2007., 

Substantially all assets are pledged as collateral for first mortgage notes payable to tlie United 
States of America (RUS and FFB) and CFC. 

follows: 2008 - $61,137,000; 2009 - $67,248,000; 2010 - $461,605,000; 2011 - $75,178,000; 2012 - 

NOTE. 6 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

Pension Plan: Pension benefits for siibstaiitially all employees are provided through 
participation in tlie National R~iral Electtic Cooperative Association’s Retirement and Security 
Program, a multi-employer defined benefit plan. Tlie Cooperative’s required contributions were 
approximately $8,968,000 and $7,883,000 for 2007 and 2006, respectively The Cooperative 
expects to contribute approximately $6,809,000 to tlie plan in 2008. 

Effective January 1, 2008, the Cooperative revised its defiiied benefit plan by reducing the benefit 
level from 2.0% with a cost of living adjustment to 1.8% without a cost of living adjustment, This 
revision will apply to all employees currently participating in tlie defined benefit plan This action 
will apply to service beginning January 1,2008 

Retirement Savings Plan: The Cooperative has a Retirement Savings Plan for all employees 
who are eligible to participate in the Cooperative’s benefit programs. Tlie plan allows 
participants to make contributions by salary reduction, pursuant to Section 401(k) of the 
Internal Revenue Code, The Cooperative makes matching contributions to the account of each 
participant up to 2 percent of the participant‘s compensation. The Cooperative contributed 
approximately $790,000 and $775,000 to tlie plan in 2007 and 2006, respectively., Employees vest 
immediately in their contributions and tlie contributions of tlie Cooperative, The Cooperative 
expects to contribute approximately $722,000 to tlie plan in 2008. 

Supplemental Death Benefit Plan: The Cooperative provides a Supplemental Death Benefit 
Plan to all employees eligible to participate in tlie pension plan The supplemental death 
benefit is payable to a deceased employee’s beneficiary if the lump sum value of a 100‘%) 
survivor benefit mder  tlie pension plan exceeds tlie pension plan benefits plus tlie 
Cooperative’s group life insurance proceeds., Management believes that any liability related to 
this plan will not have a material effect on tlie consolidated financial statements 
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Postretirement Medical Benefits: The Cooperative sponsors a defined benefit plan that provides 
medical and life insurance coverage to retirees and their dependents., Participating retirees and 
dependents contribute 50 percent of the projected cost of coverage. For purposes of the liability 
estimates, the substantive plan is assumed to be the same as the extant written plan. The plan is 
not funded., 

In  September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 158 (SFAS 158), SFAS 158 requires an employer to recognize the 
overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan as an asset or liability 
on its balance sheet, beginning with year end 2007, and to recognize changes in that funded status 
in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive income beginning in calendar year 
2008. Adoption of SFAS 158 had the following effect on the individual luie items in the 2007 
balance sheet (dollars in thousands): 

After 
Before Application Applica tion 

of SFAS 158 Adiushnents of SFAS 158 

Accrued postretirement benefit cost $ 51,053 $ (12,136) $ 38,917 
Accumulated other comprehensive income $ 486 $ 12,136 $ 12,622 

Information about plan assets, obligations and contributions follows: The following table sets 
forth the plan's stahis reconciled with the amount shown in the Cooperative's balance sheets at 
December 31,2007 and 2006 (dollars in thousands): 

2007 2006 

Accrued benelit cost at beginning of period 
Net periodic cost 
Coiitiibutioiis credited 
Acciiied benefit cost at end of period 
Accumulated other compiehensive income 

$ 48,663 $ 46,604 
3,028 2,547 
(638) (488) 

51,053 48,663 
(12,136) 

Funded stahis $ 38,917 . $ 48663 . 

The discount late used in determining the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation for 2007 
and 2006 was 6 25% and 6 00%, respectively 

The Cooperative expects to contiibute approximately $927,000 to the plan in 2008 
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The following expected benefit payments from the plan, which reflect anticipated future service, 
are (dollars in thousands): 

2006 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
201.3 - 2017 

I 927 
1,038 
1,164 
1,297 
1,461 
9,946 

Total $ 15,633 

Foi measurement purposes, a 10 percent annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered 
health care benefits was used for the yea1 ended December 31, 2007 The rate is assumed to 
decline to 5 percent aftei five years 

The health care cost trend rate assumption has a significant effect on the amounts iepolted 

Effect on total of seivice cost and inteiest cost 
components (dollars in thousands) 

I-percentage-point increase 
1 -percentage-point decrease 

Effect on postietireinent benefit obligation 
(dollars in thousands) 

1-percentage-point increase 
1-percentage-point decrease 
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The Cooperative has enteied into long-term power purchase agreements having minimum 
payment obligations for the one year subsequent to December 31, 2007 as follows (dollars in 
thousands): 

2008 '$ 37,484 

The Cooperative is conunitted to purchase coal for its generating plants under long-term contracts 
having minimum purchase obligations as follows (dollars in thousands): 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 

$ 134,108 
128,771 
96,993 
73,958 
59,461 

The minimum cost of the coal purchases, based on the latest contrach.ia1 prices, is subject to 
escalation clauses that are generally based 011 governineiit-published indices and market price re- 
openers 

There are pending civil claims in litigation against the Cooperative Under the Cooperative's 
general liability insurance program, it is responsible for a deductible amount up to $1,000,000 for 
each occurrence. Neither the probable outcome nor ultimate liability resulting from any claims 
and litigation can be readily determined at this time., Accruals have been made when appropriate 
and management believes 'that any liability for such matters will, in any case, not have a material 
effect on the consolidated financial statements 

During 2007, the Cooperative settled two lawsuits with the U S  Enviroiimental Protection Agency 
( E M )  resulting in the execution of two Consent Decrees discussed below. 

On Jaiiuary 28,2004, the EPA sued the Cooperative alleging that physical or operatbig changes to 
three coal-fited geiierators resulted iii simultaiieous violations of the Prevention of Significant 
Deterioration provision of the Clean Air Act; the New Source Performance Standards of the Clean 
Air Act; and the State Implementation Plan for IGntucky, as approved by EPA. 

Tile parties executed a Coiisent Decree ("NSR Consent Decree"), which was lodged of record in 
U.,S District Court on July 5, 2007 The United States Department of Justice received public 
comments on the NSR Consent Decree for 30 days from JUIY 5, 2007. The Federal Judge for the 
Eastern District of Kentucky entered the NSR Consent Decree on September 24,2007 
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Under tlie terms of the NSR Consent Decree, tlie Cooperative paid $750,000 in civil penalties to tlie 
EPA, agreed to install certain emissions monitoring equipment and controls, and agreed to report 
emissions. In tlie event tlie Cooperative does not comply with tlie provisions of tlie NSR Consent 
Decree, tlie E.PA may assess certain penalties. The Cooperative has complied with the NSR 
Consent Decree; no additional accruals are required relating to tlus matter. 

On Jaii~iary 17,2006, tlie Cooperative received a Notice of Violation (NOV) from the EPA alleging 
violations of tlie Federal Clean Air Act's Acid Rain Program and NOx SIP Call Allowance Trading 
Program at Dale Units 1 and 2 At issue was EPA's allegation that tlie Cooperative incorrectly 
reported tlie hirbine, rather than the generator, nameplate ratings, thus placing the Units under 
tlie Acid Rain Program On February 10, 2006, tlie Cooperative received an NOV from tlie 
K.entucky Eiivironmental and Public Protection Cabinet regarding the same matter. The NOV's 
covered tlie years 2000 through 2004. 

Tlie parties executed a Consent Decree ("Acid Rain Consent Decree") which tlie United States 
Department of Justice lodged on September 20, 2007, and subsequently entered after tlie 30-day 
public coinment period on November 30,2007. 

Under tlie terms of the Acid Rain Consent Decree, tlie Cooperative must make six annual 
payments of $1,900,000 ("Fixed Penalty Payment"), totaling $11,400,000, Tlie Cooperative made 
tlie first installment of this fixed penalty payment in December 2007. In addition to the Fixed 
Penalty Payment, tlie Cooperative is subject to a Contingent Penalty Payment for a period of five 
years, based on audited financial statements for the years 2008 through 2012 Tlie Cooperative 
will be subject to tlie Contingent Penalty Payment if certain fiiiancial ratios are achieved, Tlie 
Cooperative lias reserved $11,700,000 for such contingent penalty payments., In December 2007, 
based on the terms of tlie Acid Rain Consent Decree, tlie Cooperative surrendered 4,107 NOx 
allowances and 15,311 SO2 allowances. Liabilities and margin impicts relatiuig to complying with 
this Acid Rain Consent Decree are included in tlie consolidated financial statements. 

The Cooperative lias certain generating plants that contain asbestos, wluch is required by law to 
be removed or contained if the plants are renovated 01 demolished The Cooperative has no plans 
to retire any of its generating plants at this time. Because tliere is an iiideterminate settlement date 
for tlie asset retirement obligation, tlie range of time over which tlie Cooperative may settle tlie 
obligation is unknown. Therefore, a fair value determination of an asset retirement obligation 
cannot be reasonably estimated., 

In September 2004, the Board approved tlie construction of a 278-megawatt circulating fluidized 
bed baseload unit at Spurlock Station. The cost of construction of tlie generating unit, including 
related interconnection facilities, will approximate $556 million. 
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In November 2004, the Board approved the construction of a 278-megawatt circulating fluidized 
bed baseload unit at tlie J I<,. Smith Statioii. The cost of construction of the generating unit, 
including related interconnection facilities, will approximate $664 million 

In December 2004, the Board approved the construction of five gas-fired combustion hirbines to 
be located at the Cooperative's ],I< Smith Power Station. Construction of three of the combustion 
hirbkies has been deferred until afteI 2009. The first two combustion turbines are expected to cost 
approximately $155 million and are scheduled to become operational in 2009. 

In September 2005, tlie Board approved construction of a new limestone scrubber with a wet 
precipitator for Spurlock Unit 2 at a cost of approximately $207 million. 

In January 2006, the Board approved tlie construction of a new limestone scrubber with a wet 
precipitator for Spurlock Unit 1 at a cost of approximately $173 million. 

Tlie construction projects mentioned above are subject to PSC approval 

In December 2006, Warren Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation ("Warren") decided not to 
become a member of tlie Cooperative. In tlie summer of 2007, the Cooperative reached a 
settlement with Warren Tiis settlement resulted in a $32 million write-off that is included in tlie 
consolidated financial statements 

NOTE 8 -FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUME,NTS 

Tlie following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of 
financial instruments for wluch it is practicable to estimate that value: 

Cadi and Cash Eouivaieiits: Tlie carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short 
maturity of tliese instruments 

Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable: Tlie fair values of accounts receivable and payable 
are based on carrying value due to the short-term nature of the instruments, 

Investment Securities: The fair values of investment securities are estimated based on quoted 
market prices for the same or similar investments. 

Long-Term Accounts Receivable: Tlie fair values of long-term accounts receivable are estimated 
based on quoted interest rates for similar maturities. 
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Notes Pavable: The carrying amount approximates fair value because of the variable rate and 
payable on demcmd terms of the financial instrument 

Long-Term Debl: The fair value of the Cooperative's long-term debt that is practicable to 
estimate, is estimated based on the quoted market prices foi the same or similar issues or on the 
current rates available to the Cooperative for debt of the same remaining maturities, including the 
appropriate redemption premium, if any. 

The estimated fair values of the Cooperative's financial instruments are as follows (in thousands): 

2007 2006 
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 

Financial assets 
Amount Amount Value 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,660 $ 16,660 $ 69,202 69,202 
Accounts receivable 68,309 68,309 62,091 62,091 
Investment securities 

Available for sale 46,551 46,551 43,956 43,956 
Held to maturity 8,195 8,174 8,216 7,818 

(including current portion) 6,847 9,411 8,572 9,266 
Long-tei m accounts receivable 

Financial liabilities 
Long-term debt $2,016,176 ~ ~ z , a s g , ~  $1,701,087 $1,713,203 
Accounts payable 106,153 106,153 90,977 90,977 
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The 16 distributian coaperatives, which are called 
the member systems, own EKPC.The 16 co-ops include: 

Big Sondy RECC 5 licking Volley RECC 
Blue Gross Energy Cooperotive 
Clork Energy Cooperotive 

Nolin RECC 
Owen Electric Cooperative 

0 Cumberlond Volley Electric 3 Solt River Electric Cooperotive 
3 Formers RECC : Shelby Energy Cooperative 
2 Fleming-Moson Energy Cooperotive 

3 Inter-County Energy 
j Jackson Energy Cooperative 

Grayson RECC I Taylor County RECC 

EAST KENTUCKY POWER GENERATION 
1 Spurlock 1,llBnetMW 

2 Dale 196 net MW 

3 Smith 
Combustion 
Turbine 
Units 

4 Cooper 

Landfill Gas Plants 
5 Bavarian 

6 Laurel Ridge 

7 Green Valley 

8 Pearl Hollow 

9 Pendleton 

Summer 
626 net MW 
Winter 
842 net MW 

341 net MW 

3.2 net MW 

4.0 net MW 

24netMW 

2.4 net MW 

3.2 net MW shows system wide service are0 

Southeastern 
Power Adm. (SEPA), 
hydro power 170MW 
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EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE 
Fi na ncia I Wig hlig hts (Dollars in Thousands) 

2006 

Operating Revenue $650,960 

Operating Expenses $573,750 

Net Margin (Deficit) $1 1,174 

Fuel Expenses for Generation $278,210 

Purchased Power Cost $76,781 

Interest Cost $84,834 

Members’ Equities $107,033 

Construction Expenditures $290,463 

Assets $2,030,092 

YO 
Increase 

2005 (Decrease) 

$631,297 

$588,346 

($46,007) 
$263,434 

$109,571 

$69,844 

$96,108 

$162,607 

$1,687,894 

Sales to Member Cooperatives (MWh) $12,129,402 $12,365,466 

System Peak Demand (MW) 
Winter Season 2,859 * 2,642 

Summer Season 2,339 2,227 

Number of Member System Consumers 504,492 496,906 

*set February 16,2007 

3.1 

(2.5) 
124.3 

5.6 

(29.9) 

21.5 

11.4 

78.6 

20.3 

(1.9) 

8.2 

5.0 

1.5 



Net Margins (Deficit) - $1,000 
TIER 
DSC 
Fuel Expense - $1,000 
Construction Expenditures -$l,O00 

Generation 
Transmission 
General 

Investment In Facilities - $1.000 
Original Cost 

LongTerm Debt - $1,000 
Total Assets- $1.000 
Number of Employees - Full-Time 
Cost of Coal Purchased 

$/ton 
SlMBtu 

Amount of Coal Purchased - tons 
Generation - MWh 
System Peak Demand - MW 

Winter Season 
Summer Season 

Sales to Other Utilities - MWh 
Member Load Growth - % 

Energy 
Demand 

Load Factor-% 
Miles of Line 
Installed Capacity - kVA 
Distribution Substations 

2006 

$11,174 
1.13 
0.98 

$278,210 

$222,722 
$62,638 

$5,103 

$2,482,319 
$1,643,305 
$2,030,092 

620 

$55.82 
$2.35 

4,788,437 
11,197,632 

2,859 
2,339 

77,010 

11.9) 
1.3 
50 

2.673 
9,010,066 

321 

2005 

(246,007) 
0.34 
0.66 

$263,434 

$1 31,756 
$26,987 
$3,864 

$2,192.259 
$1,339,263 
$1,687,894 

635 

$49.95 
$2.09 

4,559,035 
11,105,626 

2,642 
2,227 

144,197 

4.7 
6.2 
52 

2,663 
8,919,666 

31 1 

2004 

627,267) 
49 

0 72 
$173,506 

$ 166,351 
$35,818 
$2,846 

$2,025,3 14 
$1,223,164 
$1,558,561 

629 

$43 24 
$1 78 

3,859,339 
9,046,449 

2.71 1 
2,041 

53,466 

32 
40  
51 

2,638 
8,8 6 3,6 6 6 

304 

2003 

$29,398 
166 
135 

$137,103 

$22 1,949 
$27,101 
$12,762 

$1,810,211 
$952,987 

$1,328,532 
599 

$34.13 
$1 39 

3.61 5.1 96 
9,061,760 

2,589 
1,996 

71,224 

0.7 
(0 6) 

51 
2,629 

8,824,466 
299 

2002 

$37,428 
195 
173 

$146,506 

$155.71 3 
$25,149 
$9,649 

$1,558,890 
$762,079 

$1,026,947 
600 

$32 35 
$1 33 

3,815,851 
9,873,289 

2,568 
2,120 

513,874 

6 9  
6 2  
58 

2,607 
8.722.747 

292 



2006: A Part ing Glance 

Following two financially difficult years, in 2006 East Kentucky 
Power Cooperative began taking important steps to stream- 
line operations and strengthen the organization's financial 
condition. 

Throughout the year, EKPC implemented a cost containment 
initiative that reduced costs by more than $17 million by 
blending fuels,changing unit maintenance schedules and 
taking other cost-cutting steps. 

Year-end results showed a net margin of $1 1.2 million.The 
margins were adversely impacted due to unseasonably mild 
winter and summer weather, but a number of cost-saving 
efforts proved critical in obtaining positive year-end results., 
We are continuing the initiative in 2007 to further reduce 
costs and streamline operations. 

One of the immediate challenges being faced is  EKPC's 
growth in power demand, which continues to increase a t  
twice the average national rate 

To meet future demand,construction began June 2006 
on Spurlock Unit #4,a circulating fluidized bed plant that 
will be one of the nation's cleanest coal generating units. 
Smith Unit # l ,a  nearly identical 278-megawatt coal-fired 
unit, is planned for 1 K., Smith Station in Clark County, Ky, 
in 201 1. 

EKPC's power supply plans changed a t  the end of 2006 when 
Warren RECC announced that it would not be joining EKPC in 
2008 as previously planned. 

Due to continued strong growth of the system, EKPC's analysis 
showed that both Spurlock Unit #4 and Smith Unit # 1  were 
still needed in Spring 2009 and Summer 201 1, respectively 

Although baseload plans remain unchanged, EKPC's plans for 
combustion turbine peaking units did change. EKPC will now 
need two combustion turbines by Summer 2009 

Our renewable energy program continued to thrive, with OUI 

fourth landfill gas-to-electric plant in Hardin County making 

i t s  debut in February 2006, and a fifth plant beginning 
commercial operation in Pendleton County in February 2007. 

Work also began in 2006 on two major 345-kilovolt (kV) 
transmission projects that will improve reliability in Central 
Kentucky. Preliminary project work got underway on the 
Smith to West Garrard line, a 36-mile 345 kV line,and 
construction of the 18-mile Smith to North Clark line began 
in late 2006. 

Despite the flurry of challenges,we are moving forward with 
renewed confidence,and we will focus efforts upon continued 
steps to strengthen the financial future of our organization. 
EKPC's primary commitment - to provide both quality service 
and the most affordable power possible to our member 
systems - remains strong. 

Bob Marshall 
President and CEO 

Wayne Stratton 
Chairman of the Board 





From Coal to Kilowatts: How Electricity is Made 

It takes an around-the-clock effort to make sure we have all the power we 
need at any time of the day or night. EKPC’s coal-fired power plants operate 
24 hours a day, generating thousands of megawatts of electricity that are 
delivered to you at  the speed of light - 186,000 miles per second. 

So, how do we do it? 





YEAR IN REVIEW 

Marshall Named CEO 
In December, EKPC's Board of Directors named Owen Electric 
President and CEO Bob Marshall as EKPC's president and 
chief executive officer effective January 1,2007. 

Warren RECC Decides Not To Join EKPC 
Warren Rural Electric Cooperative's (WRECC) board ofdirectors 
decided in December to withdraw its previous notice to leave 
the Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA). 

In 2004, WRECC had made the decision to pursue a power 
supply arrangement with EKPC in order to obtain economical 
wholesale power and an ownership stake in i ts power supplier. 
Though both cooperatives worked diligently to develop the 
partnership, WRECC's leaders ultimately determined it was in 
the best interest of their members not to join EKPC. 

Spurlock Unit 114 Construction Begins 
Immediately upon receiving the final air permit from the 
Kentucky Division of Air Quality, construction began on 
Spurlock Unit K4, EKPC's second clean coal unit, in mid-June 
2006.At peak construction in the summer and fall of 2007, 
there will be about 700 construction workers on site building 
the unit The project is scheduled for completion by Spring 
2009 The 278-megawatt unit will rank among the cleanest 
coal generating units in the nation 

Operating 
Revenue 

in $Millions 
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Construction Begins o n  Spurlock Scrubbers 
In August 2006, the Kentucky Public Service Commission 
(PSC) approved construction of  a scrubber for Spurlock 
Unit #l.The $145 million scrubber is  required to comply 
with Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) requirements 
to reduce emissions of sulfur dioxide by 2010.Construction 
of the Unit if1 scrubber began in late 2006,and the project 
is expected to be completed by January 2009. Construction 
of Spurlock's Unit W2 scrubber began in August, with an 
anticipated completion by October 2008. 

Uni t  Generation Figures 
In 2006, EKPC posted generation of 11 2 million net megawatt 
hours (MWh) Dale Station generated 1 0 million net MWh 
Cooper Station generated 2 0 million net MWh, while Spurlock 
Station produced more than 7 9 million net MWh and Smith 
Station generated 200,000 net MWh EKPC's four landfill gas 
plants combined for a total generation of 88.000 net MWh 
in 2006 

Transmission Siting Workshop Held 
Nearly 60 people, including participants and observers from 
utilities, environmental groups, and government agencies in 
Kentucky,attended a workshop in March to develop a model 
for developing transmission routes The workshop was co-hosted 
by EKPC and E ON U 5, and was led by the same team of 
experts that first developed the methodology in Georgia 

Copper Thefts Rise 
Throughout 2006, Kentucky co-ops reported a rash of copper 
wire thefts, resulting in thousands of dollars in damage,and 
in a few tragic instances,death The primary incentive for the 
rash of thefts was copper's worth in the scrap metal markets 
In August,a fatality occurred a t  the New Castle, Ky, substation 
when a man attempted to steal copper groundings from 
the site. 

Member Cansumer 
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Year-End inThousands 

100- 

o- I  I I I I I I 





Work Progresses On Smith Station 345-kV Lines 
EKPC made progress in 2006 on two major 345-kilovolt (kV) 
transmission projects that will improve reliability in Central 
Kentucky and provide outlets for additional generating units 
at Smith Station. Construction began on a link from Smith 
Station's north side to an interconnection with an existing 345 kV 
line in northern Clark County. In addition, EKPC began siting 
work by conducting public open houses that provided input 
into the routing of a 36-mile line from the Smith Station site 
to an existing 345-kV line in Garrard County. 

System Transmission Construction Continues 
During 2006, EKPC built 10 miles of new transmission lines. 
Throughout the year, crews also completed 8.36 miles of line 
re-conductoring. 

Hardin Co. Plant Begins Operation 
Another landfill gas-to-electric project, located a t  the 
Pearl Hollow site in Hardin County, Ky., began commercial 
operation in February 2006 The new plant, which produces 
electric power from three generating units fueled by methane 
from the landfill, generates 2 4 megawatts of electricity, or 
enough to supply about 1,440 homes The Pearl Hollow facility 
joins EKPC's three other landfill gas-to-electric plants in 
Greenup, Laurel and Boone counties 

Early in 2007, construction was completed on a fifth landfill 
gas-to-electric renewable facility in Pendleton County, near 
Butler, Ky.The plant, which produces a total of 3.2 MW of 
renewable power (enough to supply more than 2,300 
Kentucky homes), began commercial operation in 
February 2007 

Energy Sales 
to Members 
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Every phase of a power plant's 
startap, operation and shut- 
down i s  monitored in the 
Control Room I t ' s  up to the 
operators to maintain the 
balance necessary to produce 
electricity 24 hours a day 
They control the output of 
the plant through a maze of 
electronic controls, increasing 
or decreasing the amount of 
electricity generated to meet 
the demands of our members 
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Co-op Connections Card Program Continues to Grow 
In 2006, a total of 637 co-ops in 48 states participated 
in Touchstone Energy's Co-op Connections Card program. 
The program was designed for retail consumer-members to 
obtain national and local discounts through participating 
Touchstone Energy cooperatives across the country EKPC 
member systems were the first in the nation to launch the 
program. 

Touchstone Energy Expands t o  45th State 
With the addition of Eastern Maine Electric Cooperative, 
Touchstone Energy expanded into its 45th state in 2006, 
and increased i ts  membership to 650 cooperatives. 

EKPC Hosts Lineman's Rodeo 
At  the 2nd Annual Kentucky Lineman's Rodeo, hosted by 
EKPC in August, Fleming-Mason Energy in Flemingsburg, Ky , 
took top honors for the "Overall Team" award. Cross-arm 
changeout, pole-climb and hurt-man rescue contests 
rounded out the event's categories 

Governor Signs Affi l iated Services Bill 
In April 2006, Kentucky Gov Ernie Fletcher signed House 
Bi l l  568 into law The legislation clarifies the right of 
Kentucky's electric cooperatives to offer affiliated services 
such as propane and home security The bill received over- 
whelming support in both the Kentucky House and Senate. 

Members' Equities 
Year-End in $Millions 
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Board Votes to Seek Rate Increase 
In December 2006, EKPC's Board approved the filing of a 
request to the Kentucky Public Service Commission (PSC) for 
a rate increase this year, noting that the membership would 
best be served by avoiding a rate hike impacting retail 
members during the highest billing months of the year 
The request seeks a 6 to 7 percent wholesale rate increase 

The EKPC request seeks additional revenue to continue 
providing reliable power and quality service to members, 
and to meet financial obligations. If approved, this would 
be the organization's first base rate increase since 1983 

Co-op Receives Special Recognition 
In June. EKPC was recognized as Kentucky Employer of 
theyear by theveterans of Foreign Wars Department of 
Kentucky. EKPC's nomination was in the large employer 
category for 2006.This award was established to recognize 
employers (featuring more than 250 employees) with records 
of outstanding achievement in the hiring, promotion and 
training of veterans,The award followed on the heels of the 
"Best PlacesTo Work In Kentucky" competition sponsored by 
the Kentucky Chamber of Commerce, in which EKPC ranked 
among the top places to work in the state 

Interest Cost 
in $Millions 

ita- 

o - - I  I I I I I I 
I 4  I" ,,J IU I< i" 
0 0 0 0 0 0  
~ 0 0 0 0 0  ,d "J .I vi m 





EX EC UTI V E STA IF F 
Coordinates strategic initiatives with day-today operations to further the goals of the company 

Humaii Resources 
Member Services 

Dave Eames 
Fi i ia ice  

John Twitchell 
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Financial Highlights 

Results of Operations 
Operating revenues for the twelve months ended December 
31,2006, increased approximately $19,7 million compared to 
the same period in 2005, This increase results primarily from the 
implementation of an environmental cost recovery surcharge. 
In early 2005, EKPC received approval from the Kentucky 
Public Service Commission (KPSC) to recover certain Costs 
incurred in complying with the Federal Clean Air Act., This 
surcharge was effective for service rendered on or after July 
1,2005, and resulted in increased revenue from $27.2 million 
in 2005 to $56.,2 million in 2006, an increase of $29.0 million. 
Under Kentucky's Fuel Adjustment Clause (FAC), fuel cost above 
or below a stated amount per MWh is charged or credited to 
the member cooperatives for all energy sales Due to the mild 
weather in 2006, EKPC's FAC recovery decreased from $90.7 
million in 2005 to $81.1 million in 2006, a decrease of $9 6 
million., Megawatt-hour (MWh) sales to members decreased 
1 9 percent, also a result of unusually mild weather in 2006. 

In June 2006, the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
sued EKPC charging operation of Dale Station Units 81 and #2 
with technical violations of the Clean Air Act acid rain program, 
and provisions of the NOx State Implementation Plan. The 
issue involves whether these units were subject to regulations 
as generators having a "nameplate" capacity greater than 25 
megawatts and were used to generate more than 25 megawaits 
of electricity. EKPC filed i ts answer to the complaint in August 
2006. Discovery was scheduled to be completed in May 
2007 The Court has assigned the action for trial by jury in 
September 2007 The Kentucky Environmental and Public 
Protection Cabinet has joined as a party 

Production Operating Expense, which includes fuel, other 
production and purchased power, are categories that should 
be considered together for comparative purposes On an 
hour-to-hour basis, EKPC makes decisions whether to purchase 
energy on the open market or generate energy out of its own 
plants based on the most economic source EKPC's coal costs 
have increased as a result of increased demand for low-sulfur 
coal and decreased supply of such coal In the twelve months 
ended December 31,2006,compared to the same period in 
2005,fuel costs increased $14 8 million For the twelvemonth 

period ended December 31,2006. EKPC incurred $76 8 million 
in purchased power expense. Depreciation expense decreased 
$12 7 million in 2006. This decrease is due to the PSC 
environmental surcharge order requiring EKPC to conduct 
a depreciation study by an outside firm. As a result, useful 
lives of production plants were extended, and rates on 
transmission and distribution plants were changed 

Generation of Power 
East Kentucky has coal-fired generating facilities a t  Dale 
Station in Clark County, Cooper Station in Pulaski County, 
and Spurlock Station in Mason County. Generation from 
these coal-fired units is supplemented during peak times 
by combustion turbines at Smith Station in ClarkCounty 
East Kentucky's generating facilities produced 11.2 million 
megawatt-hours in 2006,compared with 11 , l  in 2005. 

East Kentucky's power stations burned 4.71 million tons of 
coal in 2006, compared with 4.,51 tons in 2005, The cost of 
coal burned during 2006, including handling, was $2.362 per 
million Btu, or $55.60 per ton. The cost ofcoal purchased during 
2006 was $2,353 per million 8tu. or $55.82 per ton. 

The combustion turbines a t  Smith Station consumed 33,486 
gallons of oil with a cost of $1 02 per gallon, or $7.33 per million 
Btu. The combustion turbines also consumed 2,675,125 MCF 
of natural gas with a cost of $8.75 per MCF, 



Interest Costs 
Gross interest expense was $84.8 million.The prime rate 
increased from 7.25 percent to 8,25 percent during 2006. 
During the year, Federal Financing Bank (FFB) interest rates 
for long-term advances increased from 4.66 to 4.82 percent. 

Of the total $1,701.1 million debt outstanding, current interest 
rates range from a low of 2 percent to a high of 10.66 percent 
for 2006.The average annual rate on all debt increased from 
5.1 percent in 2005 to 5 3 percent in 2006. 

Virtually all of East Kentucky's outstanding FFB debt has been 
converted to long-term fixed rates Because of favorable rates 
in the tax-exempt bond market,a total of $109 2 million of 
pollution control and solid waste disposal revenue floating/ 
fixed rate bonds is  being kept in the variable rate mode This 
rate averaged 3 51 percent for 2006 

Average Interest Rate on 
Long-Term Debt Year-End 

Average % 
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OPERATIONS, SERVICES & SUPPORT COMMITTEE 

Studies. advises and makes recommendations on matters relating to the overall management of the Cooperative, 
including the annual budgetwork plan.financia1 programs and other corporate functions 
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FUEL & POWER SUPPLY COMMITTEE 

Makes recommendations on matters related to fuel and power supply, including fuel procurement, generation 
planning and other matters. 
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POWER DELIVERY COMMITTEE 

Responsible for transmission and power delivery, including transmission planning, system reliability, 
telecommunications and other functions. 
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__ AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Responsible for assisting the board in performing its oversight responsibilities by recommending the external auditor to 
conduct the annual financial audit, reviewing the findings of the annual financial audit and performing other duties as 
outlined in the Audit CommineeCharter 
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of 
East IKentucky Power Cooperative, Inc and Subsidiary were 
prepared by management, which is responsible for their 
integrity and objectivity The statements were prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
and include amounts that are based on management's best 
judgments and estimates The other financial information 
included in this Annual Report i s  consistent with the 
consolidated financial statements 

The Cooperative maintains a system of internal controls, 
including accounting controls The system of controls 
provides for appropriate division of responsibility and the 
application of policies and procedures that are consistent 
with high standards of accounting and administration 
The Cooperative believes that its system of internal controls 
provides reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded 
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that 
financial records are reliable for use in preparing financial 
statements 

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by 
the Cooperative's independent certified public accountants, 
Crowe Chizek and Company LLC,whose opinion appears on 
the next page 

The Board of Directors, through i ts Audit Committee consisting 
solely of outside directors and member system managers, 
meets with Crowe Chizek and Company LLC and representatives 
of management to review their activities and to discuss 
accounting, auditing and financial matters and the carrying 
out of responsibilities and duties of each group Crowe Chizek 
and Company LLC has full and free access to meet with the 
Audit Committee to discuss their audit results and opinions, 
without management representatives present, to allow for 
complete independence. 

Bob Marshall David G Eames 
President and CEO Vice President, 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDKORS 

To tlie Audit Committee 
East I<enhicky Power Cooperative, Inc 

and Subsidiary 

We have audited tlie accompanying consolidated balance sheets of East Kentucky Power Cooperative, 
Inc and Subsidiary (the Cooperative) as of December 31,200G and 2005, and the related consolidated 
statements of revenue and expenses, changes in members’ equities, and cash flows for tlie years tlien 
ended. These fuiancial statements are the responsibility of the Cooperative‘s management Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on tliese financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted OLII audits in  accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in tlie United 
States of America and tlie standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goiieiiriiieirt Aiiditiirg 
Stnirdnrds, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform tlie audit to obtain reasonable assurance about wlietlier tlie financial statements are 
hee of mateIia1 misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in tlie financial statements, An audit also includes assessing tlie accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluatiiig the overall 
fuiancial statement presentation We believe tliat our audits provide R reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

In out opinion, tlie consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc. and Subsidiary as of 
December 31,2006 and 2005, and tlie results of their operations and their cash flows for tlie years then 
ended in conformity witli accounting principles generally accepted in tlie United States of America. 

In accordance witli Guvcr.iiiireirt Aiiditiiig Stmidnrds, we have also issued our report dated March 14, 
2007 on our consideration of East I<.entucky Power Cooperative, Inc and Subsidiary’s internal control 
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of tliat report is to describe the scope 
of tlie testing of intemal control ova  financial reporting and compliance and tlie results of that kestiig, 
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or compliance, That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Goul‘rrirrieirt Aitditiiig Stnrirlnrds and 
should be read in conjunction witli this report in considering tlie results of our audit 

Lexington, Kentucky 
Maicli 14,2007 

Crowe Chizek and Comyany L.LC 
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EAST IGNTUCICY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
December 31,2006 and  2005 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

ASSETS 
Electric plant, at original cost 

In-service 
Construction in progress 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Electric plant, net 

Long-term accounts receivable 

Investment securities 
Available for sale 
Held to mahirity 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Fuel 
Mateiials and siipplies 
Emission allowances 
Other 

Total ciirreiit assets 

Deferred charges 
Other 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS EQUITIES 
Members' equities 

L.ong-term debt, excluding ciirreiit portion 

Current liabilities 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Accounts piyable 
Accrued expenses 

Total current liabilities 

Accrued postretirement benefit cost 
Other 

Total liabilities and members' equities 

2006 __ 

$ 2,079,932 
402,387 

2,482,319 
798,533 

1,683,786 

8,572 

43,956 
8,216 

69,202 
62,091 
44,682 
37,129 
58,920 

1,986 
274,010 

4,499 
7,053 

$ 2.030.092 

!S '107,0,33 

1,643,305 

57,782 
90,977 
23.846 

172,605 

48,663 
58,486 

$ 2.030.092 

2005 
I_ 

$ 2,039,674 
152,585 

2,192,259 
774,996 

1,417,263 

9,002 

42,581 
8,237 

43,863 
77,663 
39,736 
3,3,578 
4,087 
1,769 

200,196 

4,751 
5,864 

lfi7.@ 

!S 96,108 

1,339,263 

53,085 
75,855 
20,101 

149,041 

46,604 
56,878 

$ '1.687.894 

The accompanying notes are  a n  integral par t  of these 
consolidated financial statements. 



EAST I<ENTUCI<Y POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES 
Years Ended December 31,2006 and 2005 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

Operating revenue 

Operating expenses 
Production 

Fuel 
Other 

Purchased power 
Transmission and distribution 
Depreciation 
General and administrative 

Operating margins 

Interest expense 

Net operating deficit 

Nonoperating margins 
Interest income 
Allowance for interest on borrowed funds used 

Assessments 
Miscellaneous 

during construction 

Capital credits and patioilage capital allocations 

Net margin (deficit) 

200(, 

$ 650,960 

278,210 
11.3,382 
76,781 
27,557 
39,384 
38,436 

573,750 

77,210 

64,634 

(7,624) 

8,433 

9,192 

858 
18,483 

315 

% 11.174 

2005 

$ 631,297 

263,434 
103,632 
109,571 
21,029 
52,038 
38,642 

588,346 

42,951 

69,644 

(26,693) 

5,698 

6,226 
(.32,555) 

742 
(19,689) 

575 

I f46.007) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these 
consolidated financial statements. 
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EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' E,QUITIES 
Years E.nded December 31,2006 and  2005 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

Balances, January 1,2005 

Comprehensive loss 
Net deficit 
Unrealized gains on inveshnents 

Total comprehensive loss 
available for sale 

Balances, December 31,2005 

Compreliensive income 
Net margin 
Unrealized losses on investnients 

Total comprehensive income 
available foi sale 

Balances, December 31,2006 

Accumulated 
Other Total 

Patronage Donated Comprelieiisive Members' 
Memberships Crtpitai - Elluities 

$ 2 $ 138,393 $ 3,035 $ 620 $ 142,050 

(46,007) (46,007) 

65 65 
__ (45,942) 

- 7 92,386 3,035 685 96,108 

11,174 11,174 

(249) (249) 
- 10,925 

$ i n 3 . m  5 3.n35 4 3  5 107.033 

The accompanying notes are a n  integral pa r t  of these 
consolidated financial statements. 



EAST ICE,NTUCICY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Years Ended December 31,2006 and 2005 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Net margin (deficit) 
Adjushnents to reconcile net deficit 

to net cash from operating activities 
Depreciation 
Amortization of loan costs 
Changes in: 

Accounts receivable 
Fuel 
Materials and supplies 
Emission allowances 
AccoLmts payable, trade 
Accrued expenses 
Accrued postretirement benefit cost 
Otlier 

Net cash from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Additions to electric plant 
Maturities and calls of securities available for sale 
Purchases of securities available for sale 
Maturities of securities held to mahirity 
Payments received on long-term accoi.ints receivable 

Net cash from investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from long-term debt 
Principal payments on long-term debt 

Net cash from financing activities 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

2006 

$ 11,174 

39,384 
2,843 

15,572 
(19,237) 
(4,034) 

(54,833) 
43,810 

3,745 
2,059 

(18,236) 
22,247 

(304,474) 
57,785 

(59,409) 
21 

430 
(305,647) 

3 6 0,0 0 0 
(51,261) 
308,739 

25,339 

43,863 

$ 69,202 

2005 

$ (46,007) 

52,038 
1,418 

(21,156) 
(21,158) 
(6,206) 
( 3,8 8 8 ) 
42,630 
3,980 
1,972 

33,669 
37,292 

(190,277) 
79,465 

(82,278) 
14,311 

799 
(177,980) 

345,132 
(220,691) 
124,441 

(1 6,247) 

60,110 

$ 43,863 

The accoinpanying notes are an integral part of these 
consolidated financial statements 
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E,AST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Years Ended December 31,2006 and 2005 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information 
Cash paid for interest 

Non-cash operating transaction 
Fuel included in accounts payable $ 
Materials and supplies included in accounts payable 

Non-cash investing transaction 
Additions to electric plant included in accounts payable $ 
Unrealized (losses) gains on securities available for sale 

2006 

62,163 

13,791 
463 

14,414 
(249) 

2005 

65,925 

16,434 

23,332 
65 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these 
consolidated fiiiancial statements 



EAST I<ENTUCI<Y POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2006 and 2005 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Operations: The Cooperative is engaged in generating and transmitting electrical 
power primarily to its sixteen member cooperatives throughout central and eastern Kentucky. 
Tlie financial statements are prepared in accordance with policies prescribed or permitted by the 
IGmhicky Public Service Commission (IQSC) and the United States Department of Agriculture, 
Rural Utilities Service (RUS), which conform with accountiig principles generally accepted in tlie 
United States of America as applied to regulated enterprises., 

Principles of Consolidation: Tlie consolidated financial statements include the accounts of East 
Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc. and its subsidiary, Charleston Bottoms Rural Electric 
Cooperative Corpora tion (CBRECC) All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have 
been eliminated., 

Estimates in the Fiiancial Statements: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in tlie United States of America requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Achial results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Electric Plant: Electric plant is stated at original cost, which is the cost when first dedicated to 
public service, including applicable labor and overhead cost and an allowance for interest on 
borrowed funds used during construction 

The cost of maintenance and repairs, including renewals of minor items of property, is charged to 
operating expense. The cost of ieplacement of depreciable property units, as distinguished from 
minor items, is charged to utility plant The cost of units replaced or retired, including cost of 
removal, net of any salvage value, is charged to accumulated depreciation 

Provision for depreciation has been made on the basis of estimated useful lives a t  straight-line 
composite rates or end dates generally as follows: 

Production plant years 2019 - 2045 
0.71% - 3 42% 

2 00'%> - 20.00% 
Transmission and distribution plant 
General plant 

Long-Term Assets: E,lectric plant and other long-term assets are reviewed for impairment when 
events indicate their carrying amount may not be recoverable from fuhire undiscounted cash 
flows. If impaired, the assets are recorded at fail value. No impairment has been recognized on 
long-term assets for the years ended December 31, 2006 or 2005 

(Continued) 
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EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2006 and 2005 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Allowance for Interest on Borrowed Funds Used During Construction: In accordance with 
practices permitted by tlie prescribed system of accounts, the Cooperative provides an allowance 
for interest on borrowed funds used &ring construction. Rie allowance represents the calculated 
net interest cost of funds borrowed for construction of major projects which tale longer than one 
year and cost in excess of $100,000. 

Investment Securities: Investment securities are classified as held to maturity and carried at 
amortized cost when management has the positive intent and ability to hold them to maturity. 
hivestmelit securities are classified as available for sale when they might be sold before maturity 
Investment securities available for sale are carried at fair value, with unrealized holding gains and 
losses reported in other comprehensive income. Trading securities are carried at fair value, with 
changes in unrealized holding gains and losses uicluded in income. 

Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium or discount. Gains and losses on 
sales are based on tlie amortized cost of tlie security sold. Investment securities are written down 
to fair value when a decline in fair value is not temporary. 

Revenue a id  Fuel Costs: Revenue is recorded monthly based on meter readings made at niontli- 
end. 

The state regulatory authority has adopted a uniform fuel adjustment clause for all electric utilities 
within its jurisdiction Under this clause, fuel cost above or below a stated amount per ItWli is 
charged or credited to the member cooperatives for all energy sales 

In September 2004, the Cooperative applied to the IQSC for the recovery of certahi costs incurred 
in compliance with tlie Federal Clean Air Act. This environmental sirrcharge was effective for 
service rendered on or after July 1,2005, and is being billed on a percentage of revenue basis 

The Cooperative's sales are primarily to its member cooperatives and amounted to approximately 
$645,476,000 and $620,509,000 for 2006 and 2005, respectively Accounts receivable at December 
31, 2006 and 2005 were primarily from billings to member cooperatives At December 31, 2006 
and 2005, individual account balances that exceeded 10 percent of total accounts receivable are as 
follows: 

Owen E.lectric Cooperative 
South Kentucky RECC 
Blue Grass E.nergy Cooperative 

2006 2005 

$ 8,748,000 $10,137,000 
6,408,000 
6,304,000 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2006 and 2005 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of the consolidated financial statements, the 
Cooperative considers temporary investments having a inahirity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. 

At December 31,2006 and 2005, respectively, the Cooperative had $1,205,394 and $674,661 of cash 
on deposit at one bank, which is in excess of federally insuzed limits. 

Fuel and Materials and Supplies: Inventories of fuels and materials and supplies are stated at 
average cost. 

Emission Allowances: Title IV of the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 provides for the 
issuance of allowances as a means to limit the emissions of certain airborne pollutants. 
Allowances are stated at cost. Issuances of allowances are recognized using a monthly weighted- 
average method of cost determination. Gains and losses are recorded upon the disposition of 
allowances,, 

Members‘ Equities: Memberships represent contributions to the Cooperative made by members. 
Should the Cooperative cease business, these amounts, if available, will be returned to the 
members, In addition, any available capital credits will also be allocated to members on a 
contribution-to-gross margins basis 

A provision in the Cooperative’s bylaws prohibits the return of capital contributed by patrons 
unless, after any proposed retirement, the total capital of the Cooperative equals or exceeds 40 
percent of total assets, In addition, provisions of certain loan agreements prolubit the retirement 
of capital until stipulated requirements as to liquid assets (cash and U S, Government obligations) 
are met., Accordingly, at December 31, 2006, no patronage capital was available for refunds or 
retirement, 

ComDrehensive Income: Coinprehensive income includes both net margin (deficit) and other 
comprehensive income., Other comprehensive income represents the change in unrealized gains 
and losses on securities available for sale. 

Income Taxes: The Cooperative is exempt under section 501(c)(12) of the Internal Revenue Code 
from federal income tax for any year in which at least 65 percent of its gross income is derived 
from members brit is responsible for income taxes on certain unrelated business income 

Reclassifications: Certain 2005 amounts have been reclassified in these consolidated fiiiancial 
statements to conform to the 2006 presentation. Sr.ich reclassifications had iio effect on net deficit 
or members’ equities as  previously presented 

(Continued) 

35 



EAST I<ENTUCI<Y POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2006 and 2005 

NOTE 2 - ElECTRIC PLANT 

Electric plant in-service consisted of the following: 

2006 2005 
(in thousands) 

Production plant $ 1,556,660 $ 1,141,340 
Transmission plant 432,580 409,889 
General plant 66,517 69,724 
Completed construction, not classified and other 20,175 416,721 

Electric plant in service !$ 2.079.932 LL039.674 

Depreciation expense was $39,364,000 and $52,036,000 for 2006 and 2005, respectively 

As required by the KPSC environinental surcharge order (addressed in Note I), the Cooperative 
engaged an outside firm to conduct a depreciation shidy, As a result, usehl lives of production 
plant were extended, and rates on transmission and distribution plant were changed These 
changes in estimated useful lives reduced 2006 depreciation expense by approximately $16 I 
inillion, 

NOTE 3 - LONG-TERM ACCOUNTS RE,CEIVABL.E, 

Long-term receivables include modifications to Spurlock Power Station in order to provide 
steam to a paper inill that recycles container board. The paper inill is reimbursing the 
Cooperative for the cost of the modifications through a monthly facilities charge over the 20- 
year life of the contract. Long-term receivables also include interest-bearing notes froni joint 
ventures owned by the Cooperative and four of the Cooperative's meinber systems for the 
buyout of a propane company, The joint ventures of the inember systems will make five years 
of interest-only (prime rate minus one-half of one percent, adjust annually) payments, with 
principal and interest payments beginning in 2005, The notes will be payable in full in 2015. 
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EAST I<ENTUCI<Y POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS 
December 31,2006 and 2005 

NOTE, 4 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES 

Amortized cost and estimated fair value of inveshnent securities available for sale at December 31 
are as follows (in thousands): 

Gross G1oss 
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 

Cost Losses Value 
- 2006 

National Rural Utilities Cooperative 
Finance Corporation Pronussory 
Note $ 24 $ - $  $ 24 

U.S. Treasury bill 39,693 23 39,726 
Z,ero Coupon Bond 2,737 397 3,134 
Other 1,061 11 - 1,072 

$ 43.520 16 436 $ - $ 43.956 

2005 

National Rural Utilities Cooperative 
Finance Corporation Promissory 
Note !$ 24 $ - $  - E  24 

U.S Treasuiy bill 37,374 (10) 37,364 
Zero Coupon Bond 2,563 465 - 3,023 
Other 1,935 230 - 2,165 

16 41.696 $ 695 $ (10) $ 42,581 

Proceeds from maturities and calls of securities were $57,735,000 and $79,465,000 in 2006 and 2005, 
respectively. There wete no realized gains or losses on those calls, 

(Continued) 

37 



EAST KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOL,IDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2006 and 2005 

NOTE, 4 -INVESTMENT SECURITIES (Continued) 

Amortized cost and estimated fair value of inveshnent securities held to maturity at December 31 
are as follows (in thousands): 

2006 

National Rural Utilities Cooperative 

3.5% capital teim certificates 
6.5875% subordinated term 

0% subordinated term certificate 

Finance Corporation 

certificate 

National Rural Utilities Cooperative 

3-5% capital term certificates 
6 5875% subordinated term 

0% suboidinated term certificate 

Finance Corporation 

certificate 

Amortized 
Cost 

$ 7,655 

455 
106 

$ 8.216 

I 7,655 

470 
112 

$ 8,237 

Gross 
Unrealized * 

I 

87 
. 

$ 87 

I 

113 

% 113 

Gross 

Losses &&e 
Unrealized Fair 

$ (459) $ 7,196 

542 - 
0 so 
$ (485) $ 7.818 

$ (1,624) I 6,031 

58.3 
0 84 

F (1.652) $ 6,698 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEME,NTS 
December 31,2006 and 2005 

NOTE 4 -INVESTMENT SECURITIES (Continued) 

Investment securities held to maturity with unrealized losses at December 31 not recognized in 
net margin (deficit) are as follows (in thousands): 

34% capital term certificates 
0% subordinated term certificate 

2005 
3-5% capital term certificates 
0% stibordhiated term certificate 

Unrealized Loss Unrealized Loss 

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized 
Less than 12 months 12 Months or More 

Value Value Loss 
$ - $  - $ 7,196 $ (459) 

80 (26) 

Y; - $ - $ 7,276 $ (485) 

$ - 6  - $ 6,031 6 (1,624) 
84 (28) 

$ - $ - $ 6,'LlS $ (1.652) 

The maturity dates on the above securities range from 2019 to 2080 and have no available trading 
market. However, it is management's intent to hold these securities until maturity, at which time 
management expects to recover full value. 

The amortized cost and fair value of securities at December 31, 2006, by contractual maturity, are 
shown below Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because certain 
borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment 
penalties 

Amor tized Fair 
- Cost Value 

(in thousands) 
Available for sale 

Due in one year or less $ 40,063 $ 40,085 
Due after one year through five years 2,396 2,799 
Due after ten years 1,061 1,072 

Held to maturity 
Due after ten years 

9i 43.520 $ 43.956 

$ 8,216 $ 7,818 

I 8.216 $ 7.818 
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NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consisted of the following 
(in thousands): 

First mortgage notes: 
2006 2005 

4,241"h - 10.,657%, payable quarterly to Federal 
Financing Bank (FFB) in varying amounts through 2038 

2'70, 5% and 5 125% payable quarterly to RUS in 
varying ainounts through 2024 49,507 54,643 

3.8%, payable quarterly to CFC in varying amounts 
through 2014 20,440 21,769 

Fixed rate loan, 7.770, payable semianniially in varying 
amounts to National Cooperative Services 
Corporation through 2012 8,400 9,600 

$ 1,108,580 $ 1,107,491 

Promissoiy notes: 
6 20% - 6 45% variable rate note payable to CFC in 
2010 

Pollution control bonds: 
Series 1984B, variable rate bonds, due October 15, 
2014, 4.03% at December 31, 2006 and 3.,70%, at 
December 31,2005 

Series 1984J, variable rate bonds, due October 15, 2014, 
3.55% at December 31, 2006 and 2 95% at December 
31,2005 

Solid waste disposal revenue bonds, Series 19938, 
variable rate bonds, due August 15, 2023, interest rate 
3 68% at December 31. 2006 and 2.85% at December 
31,2005 

405,000 80,000 

82,100 88,600 

18,260 21,145 

8,800 9,100 
1,701,087 1,392,348 

L.ess current portion of long-term debt 57,782 53,085 

$ 1,643.305 $ 1.339.263 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS 
December 31,2006 and 2005 

NOTE 5 -LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

In September 2002, RUS approved a loan application in the amount of $22.3,500,000 for the design, 
purchase, and installation of NOx reduction equipment and electrostatic precipitators, including 
plant modifications and related expenditures on Spurlock Power Station Units No 1 and 2., 
Advances on these loans are subject to certain conditioiis outliuied by RUS, and tlie non- 
governmental portions of such loans are subject to authorization from tlie KPSC. At December 31, 
2006, $15,200,000 of these amounts remained to be advanced. 

In September 2003, RUS approved a loan application in tlie amount of $433,863,000 for the 
construction of tlie Gilbert Unit at the Spurlock Power Station, including engineering services, 
preliminary structural design, and related transmission facilities, Advances on these loans are 
subject to certain conditions outlined by RUS and the non-governmental portions of such loans are 
subject to authorization from tlie KPSC. At December 31, 2006, $49,863,000 of these amounts 
remained to be advanced 

In September 2003, RUS approved a loan application in the amount of $27,645,000 for tlie 
construction of five landfill gas to energy generating units incliiding engineering services, 
preliminary structural design, and related transmission facilities. Advances on these loans are 
subject to certain conditiolis outlimed by RUS and the non-go\.ernmeiitaI poi tions of such loans are 
subject to authorization from the KPSC As of December 31, 2006, $14,453,000 of these amounts 
remained to be advanced. 

In May 2005, RUS approved a loan application hi the amount of $55,240,000 for tlie construction of 
two additional combustion turbines at tlie J.,K Sniith site, including engineering services, 
preliminary structural design, and related transmission facilities Advances on these loans are 
subject to cer tain conditions outlined by RUS and tlie non-governmental portions of such loans are 
subject to authorization from the KPSC As of December 31, 2006, $2,240,000 of these amounts 
remained to be advanced 

In August 2005, RUS approved a loan application in tlie amount of $64,240,000 for the 
construction of various transmission projects. Advances on these loans are subject to certain 
conditions outlined by RUS and the non-governmental portions of such loans are subject to 
authorization from the IWSC, At December 31, 2006, this loan has not been cleared by RUS for 
advance of loan funds 

In Septeinber 2005, tlie Cooperative entered into an unsecured credit facility syndicate with the co- 
arrangers of CFC and tlie Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubislii. This loan was approved for a total of 
$650,000,000 for general operating expenses and capital construction projects. As of Deceniber 31, 
2006, $245,000,000 of this amount remained to be advanced. 
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NOTE, 5 - Z.ONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

In March 2006, RUS approved a loan application in tlie amount of $481,388,000 for tlie 
construction of the Unit #4 at the Spurlock Power Station, including engineering services, 
preliminary structural design, and related transmission facilities. Advances on these loans are 
subject to certain conditions outlined by RUS and the non-governmental portions of such loans are 
subject to authorization from the ICPSC. At December 31, 2006, this loan has not been cleared by 
RUS for advance of loan funds 

hi accordance with the R L I I ~ I  Electrification Act of 1936 (RE. Act), as amended, the RUS established 
a cushion of credit program. Under tlus program, RUS borrowers may make voluntary deposits 
into a special cushion of credit account This cushion of credit account balance accrues interest at a 
rate of 5 percent per annum. The amounts in the cushion of credit account (deposits and earned 
interest) can only be used to make scheduled payments on loans made or guaranteed under the 
RE, Act. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, tlie Cooperative's cushion of credit account balance 
was $75,875,000 and $26,375,000 

The interest rate on the Series 19848 Pollution Control Bonds is subject to change weekly and the 
interest rate on the Series 1984J Pollution Control Bonds and the Series 199.3B Solid Waste Disposal 
Revenue Bonds are subject to change semiannually, The interest rate adjustment period on any 
series of the above-mentioned variable rate bonds may be converted to a weelily, semiannual, 
annual or three-year basis or to a fixed-rate basis, at the option of the Cooperative. 

Long-term pollution control and solid waste disposal ~evenue bonds require that debt service 
reserve funds be on deposit with a trustee throughout the term of the bonds, Debt service reserve 
requirements are as follows: Series 1984B - $12,717,000; Series 1984J - $5,368,500; and Series 
19938 - $1,062,000. In addition, mandatory sinkuig fund payments are required for each series as 
follows: Series 1984B - payments range from $7,500,000 in 2007 to $13,150,000 in 2013; Series 1984J 
- payments range from $3,190,000 in 2007 to $4,325,000 in 2010; and Series 1993B - payments 
range from $300,000 in 2007 to $700,000 in 2023, Debt service reserve and construction funds are 
held by trustees and are invested primarily in US. Government securities and CFC promissory 
notes, These funds are included in investment securities available for sale and have a fair value of 
approximately $20,567,000 at December .31,2006., 

Estimated maturities of long-term debt for the five years subsequent to December 31, 2006 are as 
follows: 2007 - $57,782,000; 2008 - $60,438,000; 2009 - $63,618,000; 2010 - $471,990,000; 2011 - 
$70,241,000; and thereafter - $977,018,000 
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NOTE 5 -LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Under the terms of tlie loan agreements with RUS, CFC and institutional investors, the 
Cooperative is required to maintain certain levels of members' equities, interest coverage, and 
debt service coverage. Because of the 2006 Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") Notice of 
Violation discussed in detail in Note 7, the Cooperative was in technical default of tlie members' 
equities covenant related to the $80,000,000 in outstanding debt under the Credit Facility in 2005. 
Under the terms of tlie Credit Facility loan agreement, the required lenders had tlie right to 
immediately demand payment of tlie entire principal and interest balances owed them, or to 
terminate the loan commihnent. On April 6,2006, the required lenders waived their rights related 
to this technical default, On April 6, 2006, tlie covenants in the Credit Facility loan agreement 
were modified and the Cooperative was in compliance with tlie amended agreement. 

E,ffects of this Notice of Violation have caused tlie Cooperative not to meet certain loan covenants 
as of December 31, 2006 Although tlie Cooperative is not in default of any of its loan agreements, 
tlie lenders have required tlie Cooperative to file a plan of corrective action. The Cooperative has 
developed a plan of corrective action and presented it to tlie lenders. 

Substantially all assets are pledged as collateral for first mortgage notes payable to tlie United 
States of America (RUS and FFB) and CFC. 

NOTE 6 - RE,TIRE,ME,NT BENE.FITS 

Pension Plan: Pension benefits for substantially all employees are provided through participation 
in the National R L I ~  Electric Cooperative Association's Retirement and Security Program, a 
multi-employer defined benefit plan TlieCooperative's required Contributions were 
approximately $7,883,000 and $7,094,000 for 2006 and 2005, respectively The Cooperative expects 
to contribute approximately $8,500,000 to the plan in 2007 

Retirement Savings Plan: The Cooperative has a Retirement Savings Plan for all employees who 
are eligible to participate in the Cooperative's benefit programs, The plan allows participants to 
male contributions by salary reduction, pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
The Cooperative makes matching contributions to the account of each participant up to 2 percent 
of tlie participant's compensation. The Cooperative contributed approximately $775,000 and 
$743,000 to the plan in 2006 and 2005, respectively. Employees vest immediately in their 
contributions and the contributions of the Cooperative,, The Cooperative expects to contribute 
approximately $743,000 to tlie plan in 2007 
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NOTE 6 -RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 

Supplemental Death Benefit Plan: The Cooperative provides a Supplemental Death Benefit Plan 
to all employees eligible to participate in tlie pension plan. The supplemental death benefit is 
payable to a deceased employee‘s beneficiary if the lump sum value of a 100% survivor benefit 
under the pension plan exceeds the pension plan benefits plus the Cooperative’s group life 
insurance proceeds. Management believes that any liability related to this plan will not have a 
material effect on the consolidated financial statements. 

Postretirement Medical Benefits: The Cooperative sponsors a defiied benefit plan that provides 
medical and life insurance coverage to retirees and tlieir dependents. Participating retirees and 
dependents contribute 50 percent of tlie projected cost of coverage For purposes of the liability 
estimates, the substantive plan is assumed to be the same as tlie extant written plan. The plan is 
not funded. 

The following table sets forth the plan’s status reconciled with tlie amount shown in the 
Cooperative’s balance sheets at December 31,2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands): 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value ol plan assets at beginning of year 
Employe1 contiibution 
Plan pirticipints‘ contribution 
Benefits paid 

$ $ 
487 611 
487 610 

(974) (1,221) 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 

Chaiige in benefit obligation: 
Benefit obligation at begiiming of year $ 35,151 $ 34,258 
Seivice cost-benefits attributed to service 

during tlie period 1,219 1,166 
Interest cost on accuinulated postretirement benefit 

obligation 2,095 1,931 

Plan participants’ contribution 487 610 
Actuarial gain 249 (1,593) 

Benefit obligation at end of year 38,227 35,151 

Benefits paid (974) (1,221) 
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NOTE 6 -RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Contiiued) 

Funded status 
Unrecognized actuarial gain 

2006 2005 

6 (38,227) $ (35,151) 
(10,436) (11,453) 

Accrued benefit cost $ (46,663) I (46.604) 

Components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost 

Service cost-benefits attributed to service during the 
period $ 1,219 $ 1,166 

Interest cost on accumulated postretirement 
bendit obligation 2,095 1,931 

Amortization of unrecognized actuarial gain (767) (514) 

Net peiiodic benefit cost $i 2.547 $ 2.563 

The discount rate used in determiniiig the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation for 2006 

(dollars in thousands): 

and 2005 was 6 00% 

Tiie Cooperative expects to contribute approximately $605,000 to the plan in 2007 

"lie following expected benefit payments from the plan, which reflect anticipated future service, 
are (dollars in thousands): 

2007 
2006 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
2012 - 2016 

$ 805 
934 

1,046 
1,173 
1,312 
9,147 

Total $ 14.417 

For measurement puiposes, a 10 percent annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of coveted 
health care benefits was used for the yea1 ended Decembei 31, 2006 The rate is assumed to 
decline to 5 percent after five years 
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The health care cost trend rate assumption has a significant effect on the amounts reported 

Effect on total of service cost and interest cost 
components (dollars in thousands) 

1-percentage-point increase 
1-percentage-point decrease 

Effect on postretirement benefit obligation 
(dollars in thousands) 

I-percentage-point increase 
I-percentage-point decrease 

$ 6,776 $ 6,9S6 
(5,381) (5,476) 

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Finailcia1 
Accounting Standards No 158 (SEAS 158). SFAS 158 requires an employer to recognize the 
overfunded or underfunded status of a defiiied benefit postretirement plan as an asset or liability 
on its balance sheet and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the 
changes occur through coinpiehensive income The Cooperative is requiied to adopt SFAS 158 in 
2007 Had the Coopeiative adopted SFAS 158 in 2006, comprehensive income would have 
increased by approxirnately $10,436,000 

NOTE 7 - COMMITMENTS, EXPENDITURES AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Cooperative has entered into long-term powei purchase agreements having minimum 
payment obligations for the five years subsequent to December 31, 2006 as follows (dollars in 
thousands): 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 

$ 4,553 
5,314 
7,595 
7,595 
7.595 
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NOTE 7 - COMMITMENTS, EXPENDITURES AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued) 

The Cooperative is committed to purchase coal for its generating plants under long-term contracts 
having miniminn purchase obligations as follows (dollars in thousands): 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 

$ 163,741 
99,612 
85,845 
56,334 
45.159 

The minimum cost of tlie coal purchases, based on the latest contrachial prices, is subject to 
escalation clauses that are generally based on governmelit-published indices and market price re- 
openers. 

There are pending civil claims in litigation against tlie Cooperative Under the Cooperative's 
general liability insurance program, it is responsible for a deductible amount up to $1,000,000 for 
each occurrence. Neither the probable outcome nor ultimate liability resulthig from any claims 
and litigation can be readily determined at tlus time. A C C ~ L I ~ ~ S  have been made when appropriate 
and management believes that any liability for such matters will, in any case, not have a niate~ial 
effect on the consolidated financial statements. 

On January 28, 2004, the federal Environmental Protection Agency (E.PA) sued the Cooperative 
alleging that physical or operating changes to three coal-fired generators resulted in simultaneous 
violations of the Prevention of Significant Deterioration provision of tlie Clean Air Act; the New 
Source Performance Standards of tlie Clean Air Act; and the State Impleinentation Plan for 
Kentucky, as approved by EPA, The lawsuit seeks injunctive relief, and civil penalties of up to 
$25,000 a day before January 31,1997, and $27,500 a day since then. 

As a result of this lawsuit, tlie Cooperative has done the following: 

On January 17, 2006, EIU'C filed four motions with tlie court askuig that most, if not all of the 
claims, be dismissed. These motions for suinmary judgment involved, 

(a) statute of limitation issues; 
(b) federal enforceability of the Spurlock No. 2 operating permit; 
(c) applicability of the routine inaintenance exclusion; and 
(d) calculation of emissions under PSD based on post-change achial annual emission where 

the baseline emission calculations are based on actual historic aiuiual emissions prior to 
project work, and not based on hypothetical emissions. 
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NOTE 7 - COMMITMENTS, EXPE.NDITURE.5 AND CONTINGE.NCIES (Continued) 

On September 26, 2006, tlie court issued an order dismissing most of the government's motions 
without prejudice pending a final decision in a similar case. A decision in this siinilar case is 
expected in summer 2007, 

The Cooperative believes that when all the evidence is presented, the facts will bear out that the 
Cooperative complied with the requirements, and acted in good faith. 

On January 17,2006, the Cooperative received a Notice of Violation (NOV) from the EPA alleging 
violations of the Federal Clean Air Act's Acid Rain Program and NOx SIP Call Allowance Trading 
Program at Dale Units 1 and 2. At issue is EPA's allegation that the Cooperative incorrectly 
reported the hirbine, rather than the generator, iiameplate ratings, thus placing the Units cinder 
the Acid Rain Program., On February 10, 2006, the Cooperative received an NOV from the 
Kenhicky E,nvironmental and Public Piotection Cabinet regarding the same matter. The NOV's 
cover the years 2000 through 2004. 

Under a strict application of the Acid Rain Program, owners and operators of a unit that is 
determined to have excess einissions of SO2 are subject to noli-discretionary penalties, must 
surrender SO2 allowances to cover previous emissions, and also may be subject to discretionary 
penalties. There niay also be penalties relating to NOx emissions requirements. 

Because the Cooperative did not have emissions monitoring equipment in place on Dale Units 1 
and 2,011 March 1,2006, the Cooperative petitioned EPA to allow the calculation of the emissions 
on coal burn fuel data versus missing data procedures. Depending on the resolution of this 
petition, an additional $65,000,000 in non-discretionary penalties could be assessed. At this time, 
it is not possible to predict the likelihood of success or whether these non-discretionary penalties 
could be waived or reduced by the agency or a court. The Cooperative is also required to 
surrender SO2 allowances to cover the emissions for 2000 through 2004. Additional expense to 
cover such emissions, assuming current market prices, could be $25,000,000. Civil penalties 
siinilar to those outlined above from the E.PA lawsuit may also apply. 

The Cooperative has certain generating plants that contain asbestos, which is required by law to 
be removed or contained if the plants are renovated or demolished. The Cooperative has no plans 
to retire any of its generating plants Because there is an indeterminate settlement date for the 
asset retirement obligation, the range of time ovei which the Cooperative may settle the obligation 
is unknown Therefore, a fair value determination of an asset retirement obligation cannot be 
reasonably estimated 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2006 and 2005 

NOTE 7 - COMMITMENTS, E,XPENDITURFS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued) 

In September 2004, the Board approved the construction of a 278-megawatt circulating fluidized 
bed baseload unit at Spurlocl~ Station., The cost of construction of the generating unit, including 
related interconnection facilities, will approximate $522 million 

hi November 2004, the Board approved the construction of a 278-megawatt circulating fluidized 
bed baseload unit at the J.K. Sinith Station. Tlie cost of construction of the generating unit, 
including related interconnection facilities, will approximate $625 mnillioli., 

In December 2004, the Board approved the construction of five gas-fired combustion turbines to 
be located at the Cooperative's J.I<. Smith Power Station., Construction of three of the combustion 
turbines has been deferred until after 2009. Tlie first two combustion turbines are expected to cost 
approximately $66 million and are scheduled to become operational in 2009,, 

In September 2005, the Board approved construction of a new limestone scrubber for Spurlock 
Unit 2, with a wet precipitator, at a cost of approximately $159 million. 

In January 2006, the Board approved the construction of a new limestone scrubber for Spurlock 
Unit I, with a wet precipitator, at a cost of approximately $145 million 

Tlie construction projects mentioned above are subject to KPSC approval 

NOTE 8 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of 
financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Tlie carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short 
maturity of these instruments 

Accounts Receivable and Accounts Pavable: The fair values of accounts receivable and payable 
are based on carrying value due to the short-term nature of the instruments. 

Jiivestment Securities: The fair values of investment securities ale estimated based on quoted 
market prices for the same or similar investments. 

Long-Term Accounts Receivable: Tlie fair values of long-term accounts receivable are estimated 
based on quoted interest rates for similar maturities 

(Continued) 
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EAST I<ENTUCI<Y POWER COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,200G and 2005 

NOTE 8 -FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 

Notes Pavable: The carrying amount approximates fair value because of the vaiiable rate and 
payable on demand terms of the financial instrument. 

Long-Term Debt: The fair value of the Cooperative's long-term debt that is practicable to 
estimate, is estimated based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar issues 01 on the 
current rates available to the Cooperative for debt of the same remaining mahuities, including the 
appropriate redemption premium, if any 

The estimated fair values of the Cooperative's financial instruments are as follows (in thousands): 

2006 
Carrying Fair 
Amount 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 69,202 $ 69,202 
Accounts receivable 62,091 62,091 
Investment securities 

Available for sale 43,956 43,956 
Held to maturity 8,216 7,818 

Long-term accounts ieceivable 8,572 9,266 

2005 
Carrying Fair 
Amount Value 

$ 43,863 $ 43,863 
77,663 77,663 

42,581 42,581 
8,237 6,698 
9,002 10,067 

Financial liabilities 
Long-teim debt $ 1,701,087 $1,713,203 $1,392,348 $1,418,017 
Accounts payable 90,977 90,977 75,855 75,855 









1 KENTUCKY POWER COOPERATIVE 

4775 Lexiiigioii Road, 40391 

PO Box 707. 
\Vinchcskr. ICY 403924707 
Tclephunc: 859-744-JSI 2 
Fox: 859-744-6008 
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